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Celebrating Our People…

At Nestlé, we understand that people 
are at the centre of our success. We work 
according to our company’s longstanding 
corporate business principles of integrity, 
trust, hardwork, pragmatism, dynamism, 
diversity and respect.

At Nestlé Pakistan, we are committed to 
providing each other with an enabling 
work environment, that is built upon our 
core values. We encourage everyone to 
communicate openly and collaboratively 
and to trust and respect others. 
Ownership, pro-activeness and passion 
are at the heart of the way we do things.

Strong cultures are built upon the 
foundations of strong values, which can 
take years to inculcate and develop. Each 
of us must work to contribute to the 
development of our culture and build 
on this foundation for today, and for our 
future.

We have much to be proud of. Nestlé 
Pakistan has travelled far in a short time, 
positively enhancing the quality of life of 
our people, our consumers, our society 
and contributing to all our partners, 
stakeholders and our economy. 

Our consumers are at the centre of 
everything we do. Our success is 
dependent on earning their trust. We are 
committed to ensuring that our products 
are of the highest quality and meet the 
needs of our consumers throughout 
Pakistan. 

Care is the essence of what we stand for 
and our values, products, brands and 
consumer trust on our quality are the flag 
bearers of our company.

Ian J. Donald
Chief Executive

Enhancing the quality of life of people is the 
focus of our commitment

Cover Concept
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Nestlé’s global vision is to be the recognized leading 
Nutrition, Health and Wellness Company. Nestlé 
Pakistan subscribes fully to this vision of being the 
number one Nutrition, Health, and Wellness Company 
in Pakistan.

In particular, we envision to;

•	 Lead	a	dynamic,	motivated	and	professional	
workforce – proud of our heritage and positive about 
the future.

•	 Meet	the	nutrition	needs	of	consumers	of	all	ages	–	
from infancy to old age, from nutrition to pleasure, 
through an innovative portfolio of branded food and 
beverage products of the highest quality.

•	 Deliver	shareholder	value	through	profitable	long-
term	growth,	while	continuing	to	play	a	significant	
and responsible role in the social, economic, and 
environmental sectors of Pakistan.

Vision

1
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our	performance	is	the	result	of	professionally	integrated	
management, investment in technology and the commitment of our 
workforce, bonded together with trust and integrity.
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the	Directors	are	pleased	to	
submit	their	annual	report	
along with the audited 
financial	statements	of	the	
Company for the year ended 
December	31,	2009.

DireCtorS’	report
to	tHe	SHareHoLDerS

Financial Performance
2009	was	indeed	another	year	of	instability	in	social,	economic,	
energy, and security terms.  However, despite these issues, for 
Nestlé Pakistan it marked a solid recovery from the much deeper 
challenges	of	2008.	

Local	inflation	in	key	commodities	still	had	an	impact	in	2009	–	
particularly in fresh milk where supply constraints continued and 
lead	to	cost	increases	of	+16%.	the	Company	continued	to	expand	
its dairy development initiatives aimed at accelerating production 
of good quality milk in the country.

i	believe	the	key	elements	to	our	performance	in	2009	were	
effective cost management, more investment behind our brands, 
and	diversification	of	our	product	portfolio	based	on	deeper	
consumer	insights.	the	major	new	product	launches	this	year	
included:	neSQuiK	milk	enhancer,	niDo	bunYaD,	LaCtogen	
goLD,	and	CereLaC	fruit	cereals.

Sales	for	the	year	surpassed	pKr	41	billion,	and	the	growth	of	20%	
was	split	relatively	even	between	real	internal	growth	and	pricing	
movements.	export	sales	rose	dramatically	by	+48%	to	 
pKr	3.3	billion	as	we	continue	to	leverage	our	brand	strength	in	
other markets.

PkR million 2009 2008 Change

Sales	 41,156	 34,184	 +20%
gross	profit	margin	 28.9%	 26.2%	 +270	bps
operating	profit	margin	 13.5%	 12.0%	 +150	bps
net	profit	margin	 7.3%	 4.5%	 +280	bps
net	profit	 3,005	 1,553	 +94%
earnings	per	share	 66.27	 34.24	 				“
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Investment Projects
total	capital	expenditure	for	the	year	reached	pKr	2.3	billion,	with	the	most	
significant	projects	listed	below:	

 Project description PkR million

	Sheikhupura	–	extension	and	Capacity	increases	 873
	Kabirwala	–	Capacity	increases	 618
	Sales,	Distribution	&	infrastructure	 137
	Milk	Collection	–	Field	Development	 149

investments	in	2010	of	approximately	pKr	2.6	billion	are	planned	for	milk	
collection	field	development,	and	upgrading	of	existing	production	facilities	as	
part	of	our	long-term	infrastructure	plan.

although	gross	profit	(gp)	margin	shows	a	significant	improvement	vs.	2008,	
it	is	only	slightly	better	than	our	2007	results.	the	recovery	in	gp	allowed	the	
business to focus more efforts in brand building – increasing our spending on 
consumer	initiatives	by	+66%.	this	added	investment	resulted	in	a	slightly	
lower	improvement	in	operating	profit	margin.

net	profit	and	margin	for	2009	increased	due	to	lower	financing	costs	and	
foreign	exchange	impact	compared	to	the	turbulent	market	of	2008.	With	
these healthy results, and in addition to the interim dividends for the year, 
the	board	of	Directors	has	recommended	to	pay	a	final	cash	dividend	of	 
rs.	20	per	share.		

Corporate Governance
statement of directors’ Responsibilities

the	Directors	confirm	compliance	with	the	Corporate	and	Financial	
reporting	Framework	of	the	SeCp’s	Code	of	Corporate	governance	for	the	
following:

2008

2008

2009

2009

+20%

+94%

Sales

net	profit
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and thank all  our employees for their individual and 
collective contributions to our business success. 

Corporate social Responsibility
Nestlé Pakistan, as per its core commitment to creating 
shared	value	for	the	communities,	continued	its	CSr	
activities.	the	total	amount	of	Corporate	donations	
and	CSr	projects	spent	during	the	financial	year	2009	
is	rs:	80.2	million	which	is	36%	more	then	the	last	year	
spending.

the	key	projects	done	during	the	year	are	water	
filtration	plant	near	Kabirwala	factory	and	sponsorship	
of drivers safety training track and training hall in 
collaboration	with	the	national	Highway	and	Motorway	
police.	in	addition	to	the	ongoing	assistance	to	ngo’s	
for  helping the underprivileged women and children,  
and	academic	institutions	in	the	field	of	agriculture,	
Food	and	Veterinary	Sciences,	the	company	extended	
significant	help	in	terms	of		product		donations	for		the	
internally	Displaced	people	(iDp’s)	of	Swat,	bajour	and	
Waziristan. Company employees  personally ensured 
direct	distribution	of	products		to	the	affectees	in	the	iDp	
camps and with due  collaboration with the government 
relief	agencies.	the	employees	of	the	company	also	
contributed in volunteer capacity to the cause. We assure 
our stakeholders of our continued commitment to creating 
shared value and will continue to do more in the future as 
well.

Future Outlook
We	see	2010	as	another	challenging	year	for	pakistan	with	
continued economic volatility, energy crises, and ongoing 
security concerns; however, we assume the challenge of 
thriving	despite	this	adversity.	as	such,	the	Company	will	
build	further	on	the	focused	efforts	of	2009	in	streamlining	
our operations and focussing on consumer driven 
innovation.

Despite	the	challenges	being	faced	in	the	country,	we	
continue to have a long term optimistic outlook for our 
business.		economic	prospects	will	improve	in	the	future,	
and with its growing and youthful population Pakistan 
has huge potential. Nestlé is committed to enhancing 
the quality of life in Pakistan by bringing products to 
consumers	that	deliver	nutrition,	Health	&	Wellness.	

For	and	on	behalf	of	the

board	of	Directors

Lahore: Ian J. donald
February	9,	2010 Chief Executive

a)	 the	financial	statements	prepared	by	the	
management of the Company present fairly its state 
of	affairs,	the	results	of	its	operations,	cash	flows	and	
changes in equity.

b)	 proper	books	of	accounts	of	the	Company	have	been	
maintained.

c)	 appropriate	accounting	policies	have	been	
consistently	applied	in	preparation	of	financial	
statements and accounting estimates are based on 
reasonable	and	prudent	judgment.

d)	 international	accounting	Standards,	as	applicable	
in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of 
financial	statements	and	any	departure	there	from	
has been adequately disclosed.

e)	 the	system	of	internal	control	is	sound	in	design	and	
has been effectively implemented and monitored.

f)	 there	are	no	significant	doubts	upon	the	Company’s	
ability to continue as a going concern.

g)	 there	is	no	material	departure	from	the	best	practices	
of corporate governance, as detailed in the listing 
regulations.

h)	 the	un-audited	value	of	investments	of	employees	
funds	are	as	follows	(pKr	millions):

  2009 2008

	 	provident	Fund	 1,099	 903
	 	gratuity	Fund	 393	 178
	 	pension	Fund	 555	 374

i)	 Statements	regarding	the	following	are	annexed	or	
disclosed in the notes to the accounts:

	 (i)	 Key	financial	data	for	the	last	six	years
	 (ii)	 pattern	of	shareholdings
	 (iii)	 trading	in	shares	of	the	Company	by	its	

Directors,	Ceo,	CFo	and	Company	Secretary.

external auditors
Messrs	KpMg	taseer	Hadi	&	Co.,	Chartered	accountants	
have	completed	their	assignment	for	the	year	2009	and	
retire	at	the	conclusion	of	the	32nd	annual	general	
Meeting.	being	eligible,	they	have	offered	themselves	for	
re-appointment.

Human Resource
as	of	December	31,	2009	the	permanent	employment	of	
the	Company	was	relatively	stable	at	2,422	personnel.	
as	an	organisation,	we	are	mindful	of	the	impact	these	
challenging	times	have	on	our	people.	this	makes	us	even	
more proud that, through their dedicated efforts, we can 
achieve such strong business results despite the adversity 
around	us.	the	Directors	take	his	opportunity	to	recognise	
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DireCtorS’	report
on	Corporate	goVernanCe

annexure	to

Role and Responsibilities of the Chairman and
Chief executive
the	role	of	the	Chairman	and	the	Chief	executive	are	
segregated	and	they	have	distinct	responsibilities.	the	
Chairman	of	the	board	has	responsibilities	and	powers	
vested	in	him	by	law	and	the	articles	of	association	of	the	
Company,	as	well	as	duties	assigned	to	him	by	the	board.	
in	particular,	the	Chairman	coordinates	the	activities	of	
the	board	and	presides	over	the	meetings	of	the	board	of	
Directors	and	shareholders.

the	Managing	Director	is	the	Chief	executive	officer	
of	the	Company	and	is	responsible	for	the	day-to-day	
operations and conduct of its business in accordance 
with	the	powers	vested	in	him	by	law,	the	articles	of	
association	of	the	Company	and	authority	delegated	to	
him	through	board	of	Directors’	resolutions	from	time	
to	time.	the	Managing	Director	recommends	policy	and	
strategic	direction	and	annual	business	plans	for	board	of	
Directors’	approval	and	is	responsible	for	exercising	the	
overall control, discretion, administration and supervision 
for	sound	and	efficient	management	and	conduct	of	the	
business of the Company.

audit Committee
the	audit	Committee	comprises	three	members	
including	the	chairman	of	the	committee.	all	members	
are	non-executive	directors.	the	terms	of	reference	of	the	
committee, which is in line with the Code of Corporate 
governance,	has	been	presented	and	approved	by	the	
board	of	Directors.

the	audit	committee	held	four	meetings	in	2009.	the	
Chief	Financial	officer,	internal	auditors	as	well	as	
external	auditors	were	invited	to	the	meetings.

Remuneration Committee
the	company	has	not	established	this	committee,	as	
it	does	not	deem	it	necessary	to	do	so.	all	issues	of	
remuneration are fully disclosed, deliberated and decided 
at	the	meetings	of	the	Directors.

strategic Planning
the	company’s	strategic	direction	was	reviewed	at	the	
meeting	of	Directors.	a	process	has	been	put	in	place	
whereby	long	term	Market	business	Strategies	and	
annual	operational	plans	established	by	management	
are	regularly	reviewed	by	the	Directors	in	line	with	the	
company’s	overall	business	objectives.	part	of	the	process	
involves	the	setting	of	measurable	Key	performance	
indicators	(Kpls).

the	company	is	committed	to	adopt	and	implement	high	
standards	of	Corporate	governance.	it	has	adopted	and	
implemented	the	Corporate	governance	principles	of	its	
parent	company,	nestlé	S.a.	Switzerland,	which	cover	the	
following four essential areas:

•	 rights	and	responsibilities	of	shareholders;

•	 equitable	treatment	of	shareholders;

•	 Duties	and	responsibilities	of	the	board	of	Directors;	
and

•	 Disclosure	and	transparency

Board of directors
the	board	of	Directors	currently	comprises	a	non-
executive	Chairman,	Chief	executive/Managing	Director,	
one	executive	and	four	non-executive	directors.	the	
Directors	meet	at	least	four	times	a	year	to	review	the	
progress	and	performance	of	the	company.	the	board	has	
delegated	the	day-to-day	operations	of	the	company	to	
the	Managing	Director.	However,	the	Directors	are	equally	
accountable under the law for the proper handling of the 
Company’s affairs.

Board of directors’ meetings
During	the	year	under	review,	the	board	of	Directors	had	
the following meetings:

number	of	board	Meetings	held	for	the	financial	year	=	4

 date of meeting time Place

	February	09,	2009	 10.00	a.m.	 Corporate	office,	Lahore
	april	20,	2009	 10.00	a.m.	 Corporate	office,	Lahore	
	august	12,	2009	 10.00	a.m.	 Corporate	office,	Lahore
	october	26,	2009	 10.00	a.m.	 Corporate	office,	Lahore

Details	of	attendance	of	the	Directors	at	board	Meetings	
are summarized below:
 date of  No. of meetings
 Name of directors appointment attended 

	Syed	Yawar	ali	 27-06-2007	 4
	trevor	Clayton	 28-11-2007	 3
	Frits	van	Dijk	 27-06-2007	 4
	alexandre	Cantacuzène	 27-06-2007	 4
	ian	J.	Donald	 01-09-2009	 1
	raymond	Franke	 28-10-2008	 4
	Syed	babar	ali	 27-06-2007	 4
	Syed	Hyder	ali	 27-06-2007	 3
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MarKet	priCe net	aSSetS	per	SHare
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WeaLtH	Creation	anD
itS	DiStribution

   2009 2008

	 	 	 (Rupees in ‘000) (Rupees in ‘000)

Wealth Generated / Value added: 
	 turnover	(including	Sales	tax)	 44,154,997	 	 36,758,241	
	 Less:	purchased	materials	and	services	 (29,649,995)	 	 (24,460,720)	
	 Value	added	 14,505,002	 	 12,297,521	

	 other	income	 144,145	 	 61,800	
	 Wealth	Created	 14,649,147	 100%	 12,359,321	 100%

Wealth distribution: 
	 to	employees:	
	 	 Salaries,	benefits	and	other	costs	 3,033,898	 20.7%	 2,368,698	 19.2%
 
	 to	government:	
	 	 income	tax,	sales	tax,	excise	&
	 	 custom	duty,	WWF,	WppF	 3,523,045	 24.0%	 2,800,237	 22.7%
 
	 to	Society	and	Development	initiatives:	
	 	 Donations	and	CSr	projects	 80,177	 0.5%	 58,529	 0.5%
	 	 *Dairy	Development	(non-business	return)	 149,400	 1.0%	 150,000	 1.2%
 
	 to	providers	of	Capital:	
	 	 Dividend	to	Shareholders	 2,721,000	 18.6%	 1,882,000	 15.2%
	 	 Mark-up	/	interest	expenses	on	borrowed	funds	 442,050	 3.0%	 557,325	 4.5%
 
	 to	Company:	
	 	 Depreciation,	amortisation	and	retained	profit	 4,699,577	 32.2%	 4,542,532	 36.7%
 
	 	 	 14,649,147	 100%	 12,359,321	 100%

Capital Providers
21.6 %

Company
32.2 %

employees
20.7 %

government
24.0 %

Society
1.5 %

2009

Capital Providers
19.7 %

Company
36.7 %

employees
19.2 %

government
22.7 %

Society
1.7 %

2008

* Agri-services support for farmers and dairy sector development – already accounted in milk collection & agri-services cost.
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 (Rupees in million) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

trading Results      
Sales	 41,156	 34,184	 28,235	 22,031	 17,142	 12,857
gross	profit	 11,899	 8,952	 7,950	 6,253	 4,788	 3,601
operating	profit	 5,575	 4,105	 3,511	 2,640	 2,121	 1,547
profit	before	tax	 4,186	 2,227	 2,550	 2,005	 1,637	 1,416
profit	after	tax	 3,005	 1,553	 1,805	 1,363	 1,153	 988
 
Balance sheet
Shareholders’	Funds	 4,427	 4,389	 4,112	 2,531	 1,863	 1,403
reserves	 3,973	 3,935	 3,658	 2,078	 1,410	 950
operating	Fixed	assets	 10,442	 9,177	 8,913	 6,941	 3,299	 2,394
net	Current	assets/Liabilities*	 85	 432		 (325)	 (288)	 (445)	 185
Long	term	Liabilities*	 7,399	 7,043	 5,788	 5,481	 3,010	 2,027

Investor information for six years 
gross	profit	ratio	 29%	 26%	 28%	 28%	 28%	 28%
operating	profit	ratio	 14%	 12%	 12%	 12%	 12%	 12%
profit	before	tax	ratio	 10%	 7%	 9%	 9%	 10%	 11%
profit	after	tax	ratio	 7%	 5%	 6%	 6%	 7%	 8%
inventory	turnover	ratio	 9.2	:	1	 10.3	:	1	 9.4	:	1	 9.3	:	1	 7.7	:	1	 7.2	:	1
total	assets	turnover	ratio	 2.3	:	1	 2.1	:	1	 	2	:	1	 2	:	1	 2.4	:	1	 2.7	:	1
price	earning	ratio	 18.8	 	38.9		 	45.2		 	34.8		 	30.3		 	23.9	
return	on	Capital	employed	 40%	 20%	 26%	 26%	 37%	 44%
Market	Value	per	Share	 1,246	 	1,334		 	1,800		 	1,045		 	770		 	520	
Debt	equity	ratio	 66	:	34	 63	:	37	 62	:	38	 73	:	27	 66	:	34	 66	:	34
Current	ratio*	 1.1	:	1	 1.1	:	1	 0.9	:	1	 0.9	:	1	 1.1	:	1	 1.1	:	1
interest	Cover	ratio	 10.5	:	1	 5	:	1	 5.4	:	1	 5.5	:	1	 10.1	:	1	 22.5	:	1

*  Net current assets/liabilities do not include current portion of long term liabilities.

KeY	FinanCiaL	Data
(Six	Years	at	a	glance)
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 No. of  shareholding  total    

 shareholders From to shares Held

	 	297		 	1		 	100		 	11,319	
	 	171		 	101		 	500		 	46,883	
	 	88		 	501		 	1,000		 	69,048	
	 	109		 	1,001		 	5,000		 	229,601	
	 	18		 	5,001		 	10,000		 	138,370	
	 	8		 	10,001		 	15,000		 	89,192	
	 	8		 	15,001		 	20,000		 	105,668	
	 	2		 	20,001		 	25,000		 	65,539	
	 	4		 	25,001		 	30,000		 	57,393	
	 	2		 	30,001		 	35,000		 	62,857	
	 	1		 	35,001		 	40,000		 	38,137	
	 	1		 	50,001		 	55,000		 	163,476	
	 	1		 	60,001		 	65,000		 	60,201	
	 	1		 	65,001		 	70,000		 	66,289	
	 	1		 	75,001		 	80,000		 	79,030	
	 	1		 	80,001		 	85,000		 	82,717	
	 	1		 	85,001		 	90,000		 	88,136	
	 	1		 	100,001		 	105,000		 	202,565	
	 	1		 	145,001		 	150,000		 	147,874	
	 	1		 	210,001		 	215,000		 	210,865	
	 	1		 	310,001		 	315,000		 	312,270	
	 	1		 	370,001		 	375,000		 	370,500	
	 	1		 	375,001		 	380,000		 	375,400	
	 	1		 	380,001		 	385,000		 	383,778	
	 	1		 	425,001		 	430,000		 	428,052	
	 	1		 	430,001		 	435,000		 	430,551	
	 	1		 	760,001		 	765,000		 	762,955	
	 	1		 	1,235,001		 	1,240,000		 	1,238,125	
	 	1		 	3,645,001		 	3,650,000		 	3,649,248	
	 	1		 	4,000,001		 	4,500,000		 	4,250,103	
	 	1		 	4,355,001		 	4,360,000		 	4,355,213	
	 	1		 	26,775,001		 	26,780,000		 	26,778,229		

	 	729			 	total		 	 		45,349,584	
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CLaSSiFiCation	oF	SHareS	bY	CategorieS
as	at	December	31,	2009

  Categories of members Numbers shares Held Percentage

Foreign	investors	 	4		 	26,791,449		 	59.08	
associated	Co’s.	undertakings	 	4		 	8,789,082		 	19.38	
individuals	 	657		 	6,739,553		 	14.86	
Directors	Ceo/Spouse/Minors	 	7		 	2,133,542		 	4.70	
Financial	institutions	 	1		 	430,551		 	0.95	
nit	 		 1		 	202,565		 	0.45	
insurance	Companies	 	6		 	36,491		 	0.08	
investment	Companies	 	8		 	194,192		 	0.43	
Joint	Stock	Companies	 	19		 	9,005		 	0.02	
Charitable	trust	 	4		 	17,125		 	0.04	
others	 –	 –		 –	
Modaraba	Companies	 	2		 	2,988		 	0.01	
iCp	 		 –			 –				 –			
executives	 	16		 	3,041		 	0.01	
public	Sectors	Companies	&	Corporations	 –	 –	 –
Shareholders’	Holding	10%	 –	 –	 –

total		 	683		 	45,349,584		 	100.00

key shareholding and shares traded
information	on	shareholding	required	under	reporting	framework	is	as	follows:

1	 associated	Companies,	undertakings	and	related	parties:

	 nestlé	S.a.	 	 	 26,778,229	
	 packages	Limited	 	 	 3,649,248	
	 international	general	insurance	Company	of	pakistan	Limited	(igi)	 	 	4,355,213		
	 gurmani	Foundation	 	 	 762,955	
	 industrial	technical	and	educational	institution	 	 	 21,666	

2	 nit	and	iCp

	 national	bank	of	pakistan,	trustee	Department,	trustee	Wing	 	 	 202,565	
	 investment	Corporation	of	pakistan	 	 	 –			

3	 Directors,	Ceo	and	their	spouses	and	minor	children:

	 Syed	Yawar	ali	 	 	 147,874	
	 Syed	Yawar	ali	a/C.	Syed	Maratib	ali	 	 	 54,283	
	 Syed	Yawar	ali	a/C.	Syed	Hasnain	ali	 	 	 54,283	
	 Mrs.	Syeda	nighat	ali	 	 	 	60		
	 Syed	babar	ali	 	 	 	1,238,125		
	 Mrs.	perwin	babar	ali	 	 	 210,865	
	 Syed	Hyder	ali	 	 	 428,052	

4	 banks,	Development	Financial	institutions,	non-banking	Financial
	 institutions,	insurance	Companies,	Modarabas	and	Mutual	Funds	 	 	651,622		

5	 Details	of	purchase	/	sale	of	shares	by	Directors	/	Company	Secretary	
	 and	their	spouses	/	minor	children	during	2008	 	 	 	4,782	
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StateMent	oF	CoMpLianCe	WitH	tHe	CoDe	oF
Corporate	goVernanCe
	For	the	year	ended	December	31,	2009

7.	 all	the	powers	of	the	board	have	been	duly	exercised	
and decisions on material transactions including 
appointment and determination of remuneration and 
terms and conditions of employment of the Chief 
executive	officer	(Ceo)	have	been	taken	by	the	
board.

8.	 the	meetings	of	the	board	were	presided	over	by	the	
Chairman	and	the	board	met	at	least	once	in	every	
quarter.	Written	notices	of	the	board	meetings,	along	
with agenda and working papers, were circulated 
7	days	before	the	meeting	except	in	certain	cases,	
where some urgent decisions were required and the 
board	waived	the	notice	period.	the	minutes	of	the	
meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

9.	 the	board	arranged	an	orientation	for	its	directors	to	
remind them of their duties and responsibilities.

this	statement	is	being	presented	to	comply	with	the	
Code	of	Corporate	governance	as	contained	in	the	listing	
regulations	of	the	Karachi	and	Lahore	Stock	exchange	
for the purpose of establishing a framework of good 
governance, whereby a listed company is managed 
in compliance with the best practices of corporate 
governance.

the	Company	has	applied	the	principles	contained	in	the	
Code in the following manner:

1.	 the	Company	encourages	representation	of	
independent	non-executive	directors	and	directors	
representing	minority	interests	on	its	board	of	
Directors.	at	present	the	board	includes	two	
independent	non-executive	directors,	three	non-
independent	non-executive	directors	and	two	
executive	directors.

2.	 the	directors	have	confirmed	that	none	of	them	
is serving as a director in more than ten listed 
companies, including this Company.

3.	 all	the	resident	directors	of	the	Company	are	
registered	as	taxpayers	and	none	of	them	has	
defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking 
company,	a	Development	Financial	institution	or	
a	non-banking	Financial	institution	or,	being	a	
member	of	a	stock	exchange,	has	been	declared	as	a	
defaulter	by	that	stock	exchange.

4.	 a	casual	vacancy	occurred	during	the	year	2009,	
which	was	filled	within	thirty	days	of	its	occurrence.

5.	 the	Company	has	adopted	Corporate	business	
Principles, which has been signed by all the directors 
and employees of the Company.

6.	 the	Company	has	a	vision	statement,	and	has	also	
defined	Corporate	and	business	Strategies.	the	
Company maintains and follows policies designed to 
align	with	the	nestlé	group	of	Companies	and	global	
best	practices	in	agreement	with	the	board.	the	board	
will	consider	any	significant	amendments	to	the	
policies,	as	and	when	required.	a	complete	record	of	
particulars	of	significant	policies	along	with	the	dates	
on which they were approved or amended has been 
maintained.
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19.	 the	statutory	auditors	or	the	persons	associated	
with them have not been appointed to provide 
other	services	except	in	accordance	with	the	listing	
regulations	and	the	auditors	have	confirmed	that	they	
have	observed	iFaC	guidelines	in	this	regard.

20.	 the	related	party	transactions	have	been	placed	
before the audit committee and approved by the 
board	of	Directors	to	comply	with	the	requirements	
of	listing	regulations	of	Karachi	and	Lahore	Stock	
exchanges.	all	transactions	with	related	parties	were	
made on an arm’s length basis.

21.	 the	management	of	the	Company	is	committed	to	
good corporate governance, and appropriate steps 
are being taken to comply with the best practices.

syed Yawar ali Ian J. donald
Chairman Chief Executive

Lahore:	February	9,	2010

10.	 the	appointments	of	CFo,	Company	Secretary	and	
Head	of	internal	audit,	including	their	remuneration	
and terms and conditions of employment have been 
duly	approved	by	the	board.

11.	 the	Directors’	report	for	this	year	has	been	prepared	
in compliance with the requirements of the Code 
and fully describes the salient matters required to be 
disclosed.

12.	 the	financial	statements	of	the	Company	were	duly	
endorsed	by	the	Ceo	and	CFo	before	approval	of	the	
board.

13.	 the	directors,	Ceo	and	executives	do	not	hold	any	
interest in the shares of the Company other than that 
disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

14.	 the	Company	has	complied	with	all	the	corporate	
and	financial	reporting	requirements	of	the	Code.

15.	 the	board	has	formed	an	audit	Committee.	it	
comprises	three	members,	who	are	non-executive	
directors including the Chairman of the Committee.

16.	 the	meetings	of	the	audit	Committee	were	held	
at least once in every quarter prior to approval of 
interim	and	final	results	of	the	company	and	as	
required	by	the	Code.	the	terms	of	reference	of	the	
Committee have been formed and advised to the 
committee for compliance.

17.	 the	Company	has	an	effective	internal	audit	function.

18.	 the	statutory	auditors	of	the	Company	have	
confirmed	that	they	have	been	given	a	satisfactory	
rating under the quality control review program of 
the	institute	of	Chartered	accountants	of	pakistan	
and	that	they	or	any	of	the	partners	of	the	firm,	their	
spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the 
Company	and	that	the	firm	and	all	its	partners	are	
in	compliance	with	the	international	Federation	of	
accountants	(iFaC)	guidelines	on	code	of	ethics	as	
adopted	by	the	institute	of	Chartered	accountants	of	
Pakistan.
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We	have	reviewed	the	Statement	of	Compliance	with	
the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate 
governance	prepared	by	the	board	of	Directors	of	
nestlé	pakistan	Limited	(“the	Company”)	to	comply	
with	the	Listing	regulations	of	Karachi	and	Lahore	
Stock	exchanges.

the	responsibility	for	compliance	with	the	Code	of	
Corporate	governance	is	that	of	the	board	of	Directors	
of	the	Company.	our	responsibility	is	to	review,	to	
the	extent	where	such	compliance	can	be	objectively	
verified,	whether	the	Statement	of	Compliance	reflects	
the status of the Company’s compliance with the 
provisions	of	the	Code	of	Corporate	governance	and	
report	if	it	does	not.	a	review	is	limited	primarily	
to inquiries of the Company personnel and review 
of various documents prepared by the Company to 
comply	with	the	Code.	as	part	of	our	audit	of	financial	
statements we are required to obtain an understanding 
of	the	accounting	and	internal	control	systems	sufficient	
to plan the audit and develop an effective audit 
approach. We have not carried out any special review 
of	the	internal	control	system	to	enable	us	to	express	an	
opinion	as	to	whether	the	board’s	statement	on	internal	
control covers all controls and the effectiveness of such 
internal controls.

Further,	Sub-	regulation	(xiii	a)	of	Listing	regulation	
no.	35	(previously	regulation	no.	37)	notified	by	the	
Karachi	Stock	exchange	(guarantee)	Limited	vide	
circular	KSe/n-269	dated	January	19,	2009	requires	the	
Company	to	place	before	the	board	of	Directors	for	their	
consideration and approval related party transactions 
distinguishing between transactions carried out on 
terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length 
transactions	and	transactions	which	are	not	executed	
at	arm’s	length	price	recording	proper	justification	for	
using	such	alternate	pricing	mechanism.	Further,	all	
such transactions are also required to be separately 
placed before the audit committee.

We are only required and have ensured compliance of 
requirement	to	the	extent	of	approval	of	related	party	
transactions	by	the	board	of	Directors	and	placement	of	
such transactions before the audit committee. We have 
not carried out any procedures to determine whether 
the related party transactions were under taken at arm’s 
length price.

based	on	our	review,	nothing	has	come	to	our	
attention	which	causes	us	to	believe	that	the	Statement	
of	Compliance	does	not	appropriately	reflect	the	
Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with 
the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate 
governance	as	applicable	to	the	Company	the	year	
ended	December	31,	2009.

Lahore	 kPmG taseer Hadi & Co.
February	9,	2010	 Chartered	accountants

(Farid	uddin	ahmed)

reVieW	report	to	tHe	MeMberS	on
StateMent	oF	CoMpLianCe
	with	best	practices	of	Code	of	Corporate	governance



17
Manag eM en t 	 r e p o rt 	 2 0 0 9

Lead	a	dynamic,	motivated	and	professional	workforce	-	

targeting	accuracy	and	efficiency
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Notice	is	hereby	given	that	the	32nd	annual	general	
Meeting	of	nestlé	pakistan	Limited,	will	be	held	at	

11.00	a.m.	on	thursday,	March	25,	2010	at	308	–	upper	
Mall,	Lahore	to	transact	the	following	business:

Ordinary Business

1.	 to	confirm	the	minutes	of	the	annual	general	
Meeting	held	on	March	30,	2009.

2.	 to	receive,	consider	and	adopt	the	audited	accounts	
of	the	Company	for	the	year	ended	December	31,	
2009	together	with	the	Directors’	and	auditors’	
reports thereon.

3.	 to	appoint	auditors	of	the	Company	and	fix	their	
remuneration.	the	retiring	auditors,	M/s.	KpMg	
taseer	Hadi	&	Co.,	are	eligible	for	reappointment	and	
have offered themselves for reappointment. 

4.	 to	declare	final	dividend.	the	Directors	have	
recommended	the	final	dividend	of	200%	i.e.	rs.	20	
per	share	for	the	year	ended	December	31,	2009.

special Business

5.	 to	approve	the	remuneration	of	the	Chief	executive	
and the Chairman.

6.	 to	transact	any	other	business	with	the	permission	of	
the Chair.

	 	 by	order	of	the	board

Lahore:	 ali sadozai
March	2,	2010	 Company	Secretary

Notes:

1.	 Share	transfer	books	of	the	Company	will	remain	
closed	from	March	19,	2010	to	March	25,	2010	(both	
days	inclusive)	and	no	transfer	will	be	registered	
during	that	time.	Share	transfer	deeds	received	in	
order	with	the	Shares	registrar	of	the	Company	i.e.	
M/s	gorsi	associates	(pvt.)	Ltd.,	2nd	Floor,	202	–	
Soofi	Chamber,	Link	Mcleod	road,	Lahore	at	the	
close	of	business	on	March	18,	2010	will	be	treated	in	
time for entitlement of payment of dividend.

2.	 a	member	entitled	to	attend	and	vote	at	the	general	
Meeting	is	entitled	to	appoint	another	member	as	
proxy	to	attend	and	vote	instead	of	him/her.

3.	 the	instrument	appointing	a	proxy	must	be	received	
at	the	registered	office	of	the	Company	at	308	–	
upper	Mall,	Lahore,	not	later	than	forty	eight	(48)	
hours	before	the	Meeting.

4.	 Shareholders	whose	shares	are	registered	in	their	
account/sub-account	with	Central	Depository	System	
(CDS)	are	requested	to	bring	original	niC	along	
with	their	account	number	in	CDS	and	participants	
iD	number	for	verification.	in	case	of	appointment	
of	proxy	by	such	account	holders	it	must	be	
accompanied	with	participants’	iD	number	and	
account/Sub-account	number	along	with	attested	
photocopies	of	niC	or	the	passport	of	the	beneficial	
owner.	representatives	of	Corporate	Members	
should bring the usual documents required for such 
purposes.

5.	 Members	should	quote	their	folio	number	in	all	
correspondence with the Company and at the time of 
attending	the	annual	general	Meeting.

6.	 Shareholders	are	requested	to	notify	the	change	of	
address, if any, immediately.
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Material	facts	concerning	the	Special	business	to	be	
transacted	at	the	annual	general	Meeting	and	the	
proposed	resolution	related	thereto	is	given	below:

Item 5 of the agenda – remuneration	of	the	Chief	
executive	and	the	Chairman.

Section	191	of	the	Companies	ordinance	1984	(as	
amended)	read	with	article	60	of	the	Company’s	
Memorandum	and	articles	of	association	suggests	that,	
remuneration	of	a	Director	for	performing	services	for	the	
company	as	a	Chief	executive	officer	and/or	Chairman	
shall	be	determined	by	the	company	in	the	general	
Meeting.	it	is,	therefore,	proposed	to	pass	the	following	as	
an	ordinary	resolution.	

Resolved that	remuneration	of	Mr.	ian	J.	Donald	and	
Syed	Yawar	ali	for	holding	offices	of	the	Chief	executive	
and the Chairman respectively, shall be in accordance 
with their individual contracts and the rules of the 
Company,	amounting	to	rs.	11.25	million	and	rs.	2.64	
million respectively for the year commencing from 
January	01,	2010	and	provision	of	housing,	transport,	
medical,	leave	facilities	and	other	benefits	incidental	or	
relating	to	their	offices	plus	a	bonus	in	accordance	with	
the rules and policy of the Company.

Mr.	ian	J.	Donald,	Chief	executive	and	Syed	Yawar	ali,	
Chairman are interested in the Company’s business to the 
extent	of	their	determined	remuneration	and	to	extent	of	
their shareholding in the Company.

StateMent	in	reSpeCt	oF	SpeCiaL	buSineSS	anD
reLateD	DraFt	reSoLutionS	
under	Section	160	(1)	(b)	of	the	Companies	ordinance,	1984
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We	believe	“transparency	in	disclosure”	is	the	
strongest bridge of trust with our stakeholders



about	neStLÉ	paKiStan	LiMiteD
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22 Years of Commitment

nestlé	pakistan	Limited	is	a	subsidiary	of	nestlé	S.a.	
-	a	company	of	Swiss	origin	headquartered	in	Vevey,	
Switzerland.	it	is	a	food	processing	company,	registered	
on	the	Karachi	and	Lahore	stock	exchanges.	For	nine	
years in a row, the company has won a place among the 
top	25	companies	award	of	the	Karachi	Stock	exchange.

Nestlé has the unique ability to provide a wide range 
of	food	products	and	well-known	brands	to	meet	the	
needs	of	consumers	around	the	world.	it	is	not	a	faceless	
corporation catering to faceless consumers, but a human 
company providing a response to individual human 
needs.	it	respects	the	cultures	of	the	countries	it	operates	
in and recognizes the need for quality of life of their 
people.

nestlé	pakistan	is	headquartered	in	Lahore,	the	Company	
operates	four	production	facilities.	two	of	its	factories	in	
Sheikhupura	and	Kabirwala	are	multi	product	factories.	
one	factory	in	islamabad	and	one	in	Karachi	produce	
bottled	water.	through	it’s	effective	marketing	and	a	vast	

sales and distribution network throughout the country, it 
ensures that its products are made available to consumers 
whenever, wherever and however. 

in	line	with	nestlé’s	global	philosophy,	nestlé	pakistan	is	
proud	of	its	commitment	to	excellence	in	product	safety	
and quality and to providing value and services to its 
consumers.	on	the	social	front	it	acts	very	responsibly	
when it comes to environmentally sound business 
practices and corporate social responsibility.

Nestlé Pakistan operates in many ways but people, 
products	and	brands	are	the	main	flag	bearers	of	the	
company’s image. 

For	nestlé	pakistan,	milk	is	the	core	raw	material	for	the	
production	of	uHt	and	powder	milk	and	other	milk-
based	products.	ever	since	the	company	commenced	
operations in Pakistan, it has been committed to improve 
the quality and volume of its raw milk to meet quality 
standards	of	it	products.	Driven	by	this	commitment	and	
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given the limitations of quality of raw milk available in 
the	market	it	opted	for	self-collection	in	1988.	to	preserve	
the quality of raw milk in hot weather conditions in 
punjab	the	company	has	made	substantial	investment	in	
setting	up	an	extensive	cold	chain	by	installing	over	2200	
chilling units all over the milk shed area.

Nestlé Pakistan now operates the biggest milk collection 
system, the basic unit of which is the village milk 
collection	center	(VMC)	where	farmers	deliver	milk,	
morning	and	evening.	From	over	3000	villages,	milk	is	
purchased, consolidated, chilled and transported daily to 
factories	in	Sheikhupura	and	Kabirwala.	Currently,	nestlé	
pakistan	collects	milk	from	an	estimated	150,000	farmers	
spread	over	145,000	sq	Km’s	in	the	province	of	punjab	and	
Sindh.	

nestlé	believes	in	Creating	Shared	Value	and	is	committed	
to	the	communities	it	works	and	lives	with.	in	pakistan,	
the company is working closely with the communities in 
areas	related	to	nutrition,	Water	and	rural	Development.	

a	team	of	more	then	80	people	is	committed	to	provide	
free technical advisory services to farmers for their 
development.	Moreover,	the	company	continues	to	build	
primary	schools,	water	filtration	plants,	merit	/	need	
base scholarships, women development, vocational 
training, helping challenged individuals and sponsoring 
institutions	for	community	development.	the	pakistan	
Centre	of	philanthropy-	pCp,	has	awarded	CSr	awards	to	
Nestlé Pakistan consecutively for the last two yeas for its 
contribution to community development.

additionally,	nestlé	pakistan	in	collaboration	with	
international	development	institutions	have	initiated	
programmes for rural poverty alleviation through 
livestock training and development and had partnered 
with	institutions	like	unDp	and	Swiss	agency	for	
Development	and	Cooperation	(SDC)	to	train		a	sizeable	
number of women livestock workers and small farmers 
for becoming skilled based small entrepreneurs in their 
villages and earn additional income for their households.  
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ManageMent

Present Board of directors as on december 31, 2009

  Name Nationality term expires

Syed	Yawar	ali	 pakistani	 June	26,	2010
Chairman  

ian	J.	Donald	 South	african	 June	26,	2010
Managing Director

Fritz	Van	Dijk	 Dutch	 June	26,	2010
Director 

alexandre	Cantacuzene	 French		 June	26,	2010
Director 

raymond	Franke	 Canadian	 June	26,	2010
Director 

Syed	babar	ali	 pakistani	 June	26,	2010
Director 

Syed	Hyder	ali	 pakistani	 June	26,	2010
Director 

Officers

ian	J.	Donald
Chief Executive

raymond	Franke
Chief Financial Officer

ali	Sadozai
Company Secretary
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Standing L to R

nauman	Khan
Country Business Manager 
Nestlé Professional 

usman	iqbal	bhatty
Country Business Manager Nutrition

arsalan	Khan
Business Manager Beverages

Shaheen	Sadiq
Head of Communications

raymond	Franke
Head of Finance and Control

ian	J.	Donald
Managing Director

ali	Sadozai
Company Secretary &
Head of Legal Affairs

Khurram	zia
Business Executive Manager
Ambient Dairy

Haseeb	aslam
Country Business Manager Water

Salman	nazir
Head of Supply Chain

Sitting L to R

Samra	Maqbool
Product Unit Manager Culinary

Syed	Fakhar	ahmed
Head of Corporate Affairs

Khurram	Javed	Maqbool
Business Manager Chilled Dairy

uzma	Qaiser	butt
Head of Human Resource

zafar	Hussain	Shah
Head of Sales 

Peter Wuethrich
Head of Technical

audit Committee

Syed	Hyder	ali	 Director
Chairman

Syed	babar	ali	 Director
Member

peter	Wuethrich	 Director
Member & Secretary

management Committee
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CoMpanY	DireCtorY

Registered	&	Corporate	Office
Nestlé Pakistan limited
308	–	upper	Mall,
Lahore	-	54000,	pakistan.
pabx:	(042)	111	637	853
Fax:	(042)	35789303-4

Corporate	Office	Annex
•	 304	–	upper	Mall,
	 Lahore,	pakistan.

•	park	Lane	tower,
	 1st	&	2nd	Floor,	172	–	tufail	road,
	 Lahore	Cantt.,	pakistan.
	 pabx:	(042)	36099300

auditors
K.p.M.g.	taseer	Hadi	&	Co.
Chartered Accountants

share Registrar / transfer agent
gorsi	associates	(pvt.)	Limited
2nd	Floor,	202-Sufi	Chamber,
Link	McLeod	road,	Lahore.
Cell:	0346-4479601	
Fax:	042-37230865

legal advisors
Cheema	&	ibrahim
Advocates

Bankers
the	royal	bank	of	Scotland	Limited
(Formerly ABN AMRO Bank (Pakistan) Limited)

Citibank	n.a.
Deutsche	bank	a.g.
Habib	bank	Limited
MCb	bank	Limited
Standard	Chartered	bank	(pakistan)	Limited
united	bank	Limited
national	bank	of	pakistan	Limited
allied	bank	Limited
barclays	bank	pLC,	pakistan
bank	al	Habib	Limited
the	Hongkong	and	Shanghai	banking	Corporation	Limited

Factories
•	Sheikhupura

	 29th	Kilometer,	Lahore-Sheikhupura	road,
	 Sheikhupura,	punjab,	pakistan.
	 phone:	(056)	3406615-25

•	Kabirwala

	 10th	Kilometer,	Khanewal-Kabirwala	road,
	 Khanewal,	pakistan.
	 phone:	(065)	111	637	853
	 Fax:	(065)	2411432

•	 Islamabad

	 plot	no.	32,	Sector	(1-10/3)
	 industrial	area,	
	 islamabad.
	 phone:	(051)	4445997

•	Karachi

	 plot	no.	a–23,	northwestern,
	 industrial	zone,	port	Qasim,
	 Karachi.
	 phone:	(021)	34720151-4
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regionaL	SaLeS	oFFiCeS

North Zone

Islamabad

plot	#	395/396,	Sector	1-9/3
industrial	area,
islamabad.
tel:	051-4859300-2
Fax:	051-4859303

Jehlum

House	#	53-e,	Jafar	road,
Jehlum	Cantt.,
Jehlum.
tel:	0544-720004
Fax:	0544-625605

Peshawar

Jalala	House	42-D,
old	Jamrud	road,	university	town,	
Peshawar.
tel:	091-5700859
Fax:	091-5854454

Central Zone

lahore

29-b,	Main	gulberg,
Lahore.
tel:	042-35754335,	35754336,	35754337
Fax:	042-5761491

Gujranwala

Habib	bank	plaza,
1st	Floor,	Satellite	town,
gujranwala.
tel:	055-3733415,	3733243
Fax:	055-3733379

Faisalabad

2nd	Floor,	al-Haq	plaza,	271-a,
Small	D	ground,	peoples	Colony	i,
Faisalabad.
tel:	041-8716937,	8555607-8
Fax:	041-8716823

multan

al-Syed	House,
Street	#	2,	iqbal	park,
Sabzazar	Colony,	bosan	road,
Multan.
tel:	061-6512800,	6512900
Fax:	061-6512800

south Zone

karachi

F-77/1,	block	7,	Kehkashan	Clifton,
KDa	Scheme	5,
Karachi.
tel:	021-35876770,	35876093
Fax:	021-35833937

Quetta

63-b-D,	Chaman	Housing	Scheme,
opp.	askari	park,
Quetta.
tel:	081-2834887
Fax:	081-2847797

Hyderabad

House	#	178,	block-C,
unit	2,	Latifabad,
Hyderabad.
tel:	022-3860403
Fax:	022-3863202
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the	strength	of	our	brands	comes	from	the	
commitment of our people
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“Lead	a	dynamic,	motivated	and	professional	workforce	–	proud	of	its	
heritage	and	bullish	about	the	future”.

We collectively care for all good initiatives



HeaD	oF	HuMan	reSourCe
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the	year	2009	was	a	real	testing	ground	
for businesses all over the world.  
recessions	in	many	key	global	economies	
had far reaching effects on our deeply 
inter-connected	world.	along	with	
financial	models,	business	models;	the	
human spirit took a real test of resilience.  
and	here	in	nestlé	pakistan,	we	are	
proud	to	say	we	emerged	uplifted	-	with	
a strong sense of what we are able to 
achieve together.

our	business	results	are	a	testament	to	
the combined decisions, attitudes and 
determination of our people. We have 
a commitment to the company which 
is	absolute.		this	commitment	ensured	
that even in adverse times, we have 
been	able	to	deliver	results	that	exceed	
expectations.	

this	report	celebrates	and	rejoices	the	
efforts, personalities and contributions of 
our	employees.	the	pride	we	carry	in	our	
results is because of the teams all around 
the	country.	their	efforts,	collective	and	
individual,	allow	us	to	enter	2010	with	a	
confidence	that	we	will	continue	to	face	
challenges with the best of our best. 

Uzma Qaiser Butt
Head of Human Resource

“Lead	a	dynamic,	motivated	and	professional	workforce	–	proud	of	its	
heritage	and	bullish	about	the	future”.

Message	from	the
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HuMan	reSourCe

Human	resource	Division	continued	to	demonstrate	
high	quality	practices	through	out	2009.	Keeping	in	view	
our vision for building a high performance culture at 
Nestlé Pakistan, various initiatives were introduced in 
the organization for enhancing performance and ensuring 
long lasting relationships through employee career 
development and progression.

to	understand	the	pulse	within	the	organization	with	
reference to key human resource issues, an employee 
opinion survey was conducted through out the 
organization.	the	survey	was	a	major	success	recording	
an	80%	response	rate	and	also	gave	a	clear	insight	into	the	
employee perceptions and concerns. 

in	March	2008,	nestlé	pakistan	saw	the	implementation	of	
a	new	progress	and	development	tool	for	employees.	this	
is a performance management system within the Nestlé 
world for monitoring performance and focusing on career 
progression	and	development.	the	evaluation	system	is	
career focused, systematic and directly aligned in building 
a competitive and challenging performance culture. 

in	continuance	of	recruiting	dynamic	and	spirited	
individuals	within	nestlé	pakistan,	a	specifically	designed	
management trainee assessment centre was established 
for	appropriate	analysis	and	profiling	of	the	candidates.	
this	assessment	assists	in	ensuring	the	recruitment	of	
candidates with required attributes for a certain position. 

For	shaping	things	into	a	more	digital	form,	salary	slips	
were	made	available	to	the	employees	at	their	e-mail	
accounts.	an	online	balloting	system	was	introduced	
giving every individual an equal opportunity to buy 
company	maintained	cars.	these	steps	have	aided	the	
company in maintaining a paperless environment and 
saving costs. 

this	year	we	also	saw	a	roll	out	of	a	policy	specifically	
designed to enforce a positive working environment along 
with	maintaining	appropriate	conduct	at	workplace.	this	
policy ensures that our employees take responsibility 
towards building a culture of respect, acceptance and 
tolerance.  

With a vision of enhancing the talent capacity of our 
organization,	an	exercise	for	identifying	talent	was	
initiated	in	2008,	and	in	2009	the	focus	remained	on		
developing and retaining the talent within Nestlé.

Year	2009	was	a	list	of	new	Hr	initiatives	and	projects.
We	continued	with	the	slogan	of	“Let’s	Do	it”	and	 
“Lets	Develop”,	and	our	policies	and	endeavors	were	
focused on developing a positive, competitive and 
thriving culture at Nestlé Pakistan. 

32
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We are proud to be part of a dynamic, motivated and 
professional workforce – and the team is proud of its 
heritage and is positive about the future.
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nutrition,	HeaLtH	anD	WeLLneSS

Nutritional Compass

the	nutritional	Compass	
was	launched	in	2005	and	is	
now on all our products in 
Pakistan.

Nutrition, Health and Wellness: our values

Positive Nutrition

•	 We	are	committed	to	increasing	the	nutritional	value	
of our products whilst improving taste and pleasure.

•	 We	believe	in	a	balanced	healthy	lifestyle	and	eating	
habits, and actively support their promotion.

moderation

•	 We	believe	in	variety	and	moderation	of	consumption	
to achieve a balanced healthy diet.

•	 We	discourage	over-consumption.

authenticity and transparency

•	 We	are	committed	to	provide	factual	and	transparent	
nutrition and health information in all our 
communication.

•	 We	will	always	encourage	and	empower	consumers	
to make informed decisions about their diet and 
lifestyle.

•	 We	believe	that	science	and	research	are	the	
foundation on which we can satisfy the consumer 
need for nutrition, variety, taste and convenience.



bringing	the	consumer	and	shopper	
at the heart of all decision making 
is	the	vision	of	the	generating	
Demand	team	at	nestlé	pakistan.	
Continuous efforts have been 
initiated to better understand our 
consumers and shoppers with the 
intent to not only make deep local 
consumer understanding the base of 
all	Marketing	and	Communication	
Strategy	but	to	also	make	it	the	
foundation of all innovation and 
renovation	efforts.		one	of	the	
successes coming out of this was 
the	launch	of	niDo	bunyad	with	
iron	fortification,	addressing	a	major	
nutritional	deficiency	in	pakistani	
children.

generating	Demand	continued	to	
play its role in bringing to life Nestlé 
Pakistan’s vision of being the leading 
Nutrition, Health and Wellness 
Company in Pakistan by truly 
helping	consumers	to	have	“good	

Food,	good	Life”.		this	was	clearly	
visible	in	the	portfolio	of	ambient	
Dairy	brands.	nestlé	MiLKpaK	
continued	to	address	iron	deficiency	
in Pakistan and helped homemakers 
to strengthen their homes. With 
the	relaunch	of	nestlé	eVerYDaY,	
it continued to provide great tea 
moments to consumers in all kinds 
of	tea	preparation.	neSVita	Women	
of	Strength	provided	inner	strength	
to the young women of Pakistan so 
they could lock a better future for 
themselves and their families.  
additionally	to	help	consumers	make	
healthier food and life style choices 
all our brands carry the “Nutritional 
Compass”	on	their	packaging.

these	are	some	of	the	reasons	why	
despite a tough business environment 
in	2009,	nestlé	pakistan	Limited	
continued to show positive growth 
and	win	consumer	confidence.

Business in afghanistan

in	afghanistan	as	well	our	exports	
continued	to	grow	during	2009.		
Marketing	maintained	its	focus	on	
communicating	specific	brands	to	the	
relevant	affinity	groups	in	the	local	
language.

Keeping	this	strategy	in	mind,	nestlé	
SupLigen,	a	milk-based	energy	
drink	was	launched	in	afghanistan	
towards	the	end	of	2009.	all	pop	
communication and packaging was 
developed in the local language 
Daree	so	that	it	was	easily	understood	
by	the	afghani	consumer.		So	far,	the	
product has been well received.

35
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MarKeting	anD	SaLeS
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Nestlé strives to create value that can be sustained over 
the long term by meeting consumer needs for nutrition, 
enjoyment	and	Quality	they	can	trust.	every	day,	millions	
of	people	all	over	the	world	show	their	confidence	in	us	
by	choosing	nestlé	products	and	brands.	this	confidence	
is	based	on	our	Quality	image	and	a	reputation	for	
high standards that has been built up over many years. 
a	nestlé	brand	name	on	a	product	is	a	promise	to	the	
customer that it is safe to consume, that it complies with 
all relevant laws and regulations and that it constantly 
meets	high	standards	of	Quality.	each	and	every	nestlé	
employee is involved in and dedicated to achieve high 
Quality	standards	for	our	customers	and	consumers.

in	2009	nestlé	pakistan	Ltd.	certified	for	internationally	
recognized	Food	Safety	Management	System	iSo	(22000:	
2005).	this	certificate	was	awarded	to	four	factories	and	
Milk	Collection	&	agri	Services	of	nestlé	pakistan	Ltd.	
after audits conducted by an independent accredited 
body.

to	check	the	sustainability	&	effectiveness	of	nestlé	
Quality	Management	System	surveillance	audits	were	
conducted by an independent approved auditing body 
and passed by all Nestlé sites which show the strong 
commitment	of	nestlé	pakistan	team	towards	Quality	and	
food safety.

Laboratories	are	integral	part	of	our	nestlé	Quality	
Management	System.	nestlé	pakistan	has	established	a	
biggest	and	only	iSo	22000:2005	certified	network	of	field	
labs in the country for high quality fresh milk collection. 
our	factory	labs	are	well	equipped	and	analysts	are	well	
trained	to	analyse	raw	&	packaging	materials	and	finished	
products	in	line	with	international	specifications.	all	
factory	labs	regularly	participate	in	nestlé	proficiency	test	
programmes to build credibility and obtain comparability 
of analytical results.

Nestlé as a consumer centric company working 
towards	a	goal	to	increase	consumer	defined	quality	&	
consumer	preference	for	our	products.	a	new	sensory	
lab	established	at	Head	office	to	move	towards	consumer	
centric	approach.	Sensory	team	monitoring	sensory	
quality of Nestlé products and with the help of cross 
functional	teams	supporting	innovation	&	renovation	
process on the basis of consumer feedback.

in	2009	our	main	focus	was	on	implementation	of	Food	
Safety	Management	System	iSo	(22000:	2005)	standards.	
the	other	training	areas	were	food	safety	&	HaCCp,	good	
lab	practices,	good	Warehouse	practices,	Milk	Hygiene,	
iSo	&	nQMS	standards,	good	Manufacturing		practices,	
Sensory	evaluation	and	Hygiene	in	vending	operations.	

neStLÉ	QuaLitY
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ISO	14001/OHSAS	18001	Certification

Compliance	to	local	and	international	Safety,	Health	
and	environmental	standards	has	always	been	on	the	
top priority of the management. Nestlé Pakistan started 
iSo/oHSaS	certification	for	its	manufacturing	sites	in	
the	beginning	of	2008.	Sheikhupura	plant	was	the	1st	
one	to	be	selected	as	pilot	factory	for	this	project.	nestlé	
water	factories	and	Kabirwala	Factories	followed	for	this	
certification.	by	november	2009,	all	nestlé	factories	were	
certified	for	iSo	14001	and	oHSaS	18001.	Successful	
iSo/oHSaS	certification	in	short	period	of	time	proved	
that	our	internal	Safety	and	environment	management	
system was well established. Commitment from top 
management has been remarkable providing all the 
support and resources to make our workplaces safer 
and compliant to local and international standards of 
safety	health	and	environment.	employee’s	enthusiastic	
participation	at	shop	floor	and	their	involvement	had	
made	this	project	a	bench	mark	for	other	markets.	
We	look	forward	to	an	integrated	Safety,	health	&	
environment	and	Quality	management	system	in	2010.	

 

 Safety is non negotiable – and we draw our inspiration 
from our global focus which says “One accident is one 
too many”.
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proDuCtion

sheikhupura Factory 
Sheikhupura	Factory	is	located	in	district	Sheikhupura	
of	punjab	province,	north-west	of	Lahore	towards	
Sheikhupura	at	29th	km.	Lahore-Sheikhupura	road.	this	
factory	started	it’s	functioning	in	1981	as	uHt	plant	with	
the	name	of	Milkpak	Ltd.	

achievements in Year 2009

New equipment Installation

inauguration	of	3rd	roller	Drier	as	a	part	of	Cereal	plant	
extension	project	was	done	in	2009.	bar-code	readers	on	
all	packing	lines	of	infant	Formula	and	infant	Cereals	
were started.

manufacturing

First	industrial	run	of	three	new	infant	formula	recipes.	
Lactogen-1	gold,	Lactogen-2	gold	and	Lactogen-3.	First	
commercial production of Cereal with dry fruit pieces 
and	First	Commercial	run	of	nesquik	and	nesquik	
strawberry	200g	was	carried	out	successfully.	in	2009,	
First	commercial	run	of	Cerelac	rice	25g	sale	was	also	
done.	the	new	200	ml	slim	juice	packs	were	launched.	in	
the	last	quarter	of	2009,	first	production	of	‘Supligen	rtD’	
produced	for	afghanistan.

Certifications

in	2009,	Sheikhupura	factory	has	achieved	iSo	14001	&	
oHSaS	18001	certification,	which	is	a	great	achievement	
of	our	Safety,	Health	&	environment	team	(SHe).	the	
target	of	12	million	safe	working	hours	achieved.	an	
appreciation	Certificate	on	Safety	at	Work	was	received	
from	Vevey.	nQMS	and	iSo	22000	certifications	were	also	
achieved	in	2009.	

Visits

Sheikhupura	factory	had	a	privilege	to	have	Mr.	paul	
bulcke,	Ceo	nestlé,	Vevey.	Mark	Caira,	Ceo	of	nestlé	
professional,	Massimo	Casella,	zone	technical	Manager,	
Waters,	Mr.	Hans	Joehr	Head	of	agriculture	nestlé	S.a.	
and	Mr.	Willi	Mueller	(technical	Management,	zone	
aoa)	as	honorable	visitors	in	2009.	

Worth mentioning

nCe	journey	in	nestlé	SKp	continued	with	the	right	
momentum	in	2009	to	embrace	its	vision	of	the	3	C’s	-	
Delight	Consumers,	Deliver	Competitive	advantage	and	
excel	in	Compliance.

We	worked	on	basic	three	modules	of	nCe	-	nestlé	
integrated	Management	System	(niMS),	Leadership	
Development	&	goal	alignment.

overall	savings	of	water	and	energy	projects	were	8.7	
millions	approx.	in	2009.	Sheikhupura	factory	also	
achieved	100%	SHe	Legal	Compliance	and	neQS	and	
98%	neMS	Compliance.

Sheikhupura	factory	went	live	as	pilot	site	for	nestlé	
integrated	Management	System	(niMS)	implementation.	
almost	80%	of	factory’s	documents/procedures/
instructions	were	put	into	the	niMS.
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kabirwala Factory
Since	2008,	the	factory	has	increased	its	output	four	(4)	
times	with	the	Kabirwala	extension	project	at	a	cost	of	
about	rs.	4.0	billion.	this	new	“state	of	the	art”	Kabirwala	
factory	is	extended	with	a	new	milk	reception,	storage	
and standardization area with the latest technology for 
both sterilized milks and milk powders. High quality 
products	coming	out	of	Kabirwala	includes	niDo	and		
eVerYDaY	milk	powder,	MiLKpaK	uHt	and	Maggi	
nooDLeS.	For	nine	consecutive	years,	Quality	assurance	
was	rated	“excellent”	in	nestlé’s	proficiency-tests.			

Kabirwala	factory	has	achieved	the	following	milestone	
in	2009:

•	 nQMS	and	iSo	Quality	certification

•	 iSo/oHSaS	Safety	and	environment	certification

•	 Successful	internal	audit	with	satisfactory	rating

•	 passed	nestlé	Continuous	excellent	(nCe)	gate	
assessment which will allow us to move forward 
for	tpM	culture	development	based	on	DMaiC	
methodology.

•	 Considerable	improvement	in	our	operational	losses	
(nQC),	which	is	showing	the	commitment	of	our	
employees	towards	“high	performing	culture”.

•	 Furthermore,	we	have	major	projects	commissioned	
during	2009:		

–	 evaporator	#	3	completed	successfully	with	new	
High	pressure	(Hp)	line	along	with	recovery	
system.	Successful	production	started	on	
evaporator	3	with	both	Spray	dryers.	

–	 Milk	recovery	system	for	uHt	plant	and	handed	
over to production.

–	 upgrade	of	air	Heaters	1,	2	&	3	for	the	Spray	
Dryer	#1	

these	continuous	improvement	efforts	of	the	Kabirwala	
team	will	enable	it	to	gain	the	status	of	“World	Class	
Factory”	in	the	future.
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Islamabad Factory
in	2005	the	capacity	of	the	plant	was	increased	from	
200	to	425	bottles	per	hour.	the	same	year	neStLÉ	
pure	LiFe	was	launched	in	3-gallon	bottles	to	provide	
another	SKu	to	the	consumers	and	strengthen	Home	&	
office	Delivery	business.	in	2008	nestlé	pure	LiFe	was	
launched	in	outstations	of	islamabad	i.e.	peshawer,	Mir	
pur,	Hassan	abdaal,	Wah	Cantt,	abbotabad	and	Jehlum.	
in	order	to	meet	the	demand	nestlé	invested	150	Million	
pKr	and	capacity	was	further	increased	to	900	bottles	per	
hour	with	the	state	of	the	art	water	treatment	plant.	this	
factory	is	pioneering	in	process	release	since	May	2008	
and	committed	to	sustain	it	in	coming	years.	islamabad	
Factory	has	successfully	achieved	iSo	22000,	14001	and	
oHSaS	in	2009.	behavior	base	safety	culture	has	enabled	
the	factory	in	achieving	8	Safe	years	to	lead	the	whole	
water Nestlé factories.   

karachi Factory
the	water	factory	located	at	port	Qasim	industrial	area	
(Karachi)	started	commercial	production	in	June	2007.	
in	october	2008,	expansion	in	site	for	25%	additional	
capacity	was	done.	the	factory	uses	underground	water	
for	state	of	the	art	processing	and	bottling	operation.	this	
factory is producing the highest volumes of Home and 
office	Delivery	Jumbo	bottles	in	nestlé	pakistan.		Factory	
is	certified	for	iSo	14000	(environment	Management	
Systems),	oHSaS	18000	(occupational	Safety	and	Health	
Management	Systems)	and	iSo	22000	(Food	Safety	
Management	System).
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New skills development in Finance

the	mission	of	Finance	at	nestlé	is	“to	drive	sound	
business decision making and innovative planning to 
maximize	long	term	profitable	growth,	cash	flow	and	total	
return	to	shareholders”.		therefore,	Finance	plays	a	major	
role not only in control, but also by participating in value 
creation.

to	deliver	on	this	important	role,	the	F&C	function	has	
moved	beyond	the	“back-office”	and	has	taken	its	place	
within	the	very	heart	of	business	activities.		Finance	
employees	act	as	Co-pilots	to	business	and	functional	
leaders – helping guide them to higher levels of 
performance.

the	success	achieved	was	made	possible	by	helping	
everyone	in	Finance	to	build	on	their	non-technical	
training.  We have focused on the most important 
behaviors necessary to be effective business partners; 
including general business acumen and highly effective 
communication skills.

We have also helped department heads build their 
leadership and performance management skills to ensure 
the focus on people development is consistent throughout 
the organization.

today	the	people	of	Finance	are	fully	integrated	into	
the	business,	working	in	cross-functional	teams,	and	
leveraging their leadership abilities to deliver on the 
Finance	mission!

FinanCe	anD	ControL
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in	Milk	collection,	major	reforms	were	made	for	the	
reorganization of the milk zone in such a way as to get 
more strength on the ground through self milk collection 
and direct farmers milk procurement, thereby increasing 
considerably	direct	sources	for	collection.	Milk	
collection has established over two thousand village 
milk	collection	centres	(VMCs)	in	villages	throughout	
punjab	and	also	in	Sindh	which	are	in	production	now.	
agri	Services	has	launched	a	number	of	development	
schemes, such as supply of concentrated feeds, molasses, 
fodder	seeds	and	minerals.	agri	Services	assists	in	
vaccinations, disease prevention, deworming of farm 
animals, design of cow sheds, silo bunkers and supplies 
machinery	for	silage	making.	also	demonstrate	farm	
hygiene, milk quality and transport mechanism on 
various	farms.	agri	Service	also	work	to	develop	bigger	
farms, both for buffaloes and cows. New initiative has 
been	taken	in	2009	by	restructuring	agri	Services	in	
a	more	focused	and	disciplined	way.	it	now	consists	
of two divisions having a large dairy development 
and	a	small	dairy	development	function.	Due	to	the	
enormous	area	of	more	than	145,000	square	kilometers	
and the minimal number of dairy development staff, the 
development services will now be concentrated on small 
and	larger	farms	with	milk	producing	capacity.	this	
approach will ensure that direct farms producing milk 
of high quality and volume will now become attached to 
the company and become the backbone of milk supply 
which is preferred above the informal loose milk market. 

the	agri	Services	introduced	silos	for	fodder	on	farms	
and milk collection centers; planted plots along with 
a number of fodder crops for demonstrations at the 
gatherings	of	farmers	on	field	days.	other	services	in	
agri	Services	include	training	of	farmers	and	health	of	
livestock.	the	department	also	oversees	the	vaccine	and	
de-worming	issues	of	animals.	on	top	of	that,	farmers	
can also call on Nestlé vets as often as necessary for 
advice	on	the	treatment	of	their	animals.	the	unDp	/	
nestlé	partnership	project	was	completed	in	September	
2009	for	training	female	livestock	workers	and	has	been	
a	big	success.	During	the	project	a	total	of	3,400	women	
have been trained and are providing support to their 
communities for improving their livestock conditions. 
the	socio-economic	impact	is	defined	in	the	CSr	chapter	
of this report. Nestlé lately started its milk collection 
operations	in	Sindh	also,	which	will	improve	the	economy	
in	the	low-income	rural	areas	of	Sindh	region	and	will	
frame the training and awareness of the farmers by 
working	in	close	connection	with	them.	by	taking	this	
professional help and guidance to the farmers’ doorsteps, 
coupled with incentives for increased milk production 
and	a	good	&	prompt	return	on	their	milk,	the	company	
is playing an important role in creating growing economic 
opportunities	for	an	estimated	150,000	dairy	farmers	
through direct involvement.

sukheki training and demonstration Farm

nestlé	pakistan	Ltd	together	with	baber	ali	Foundation	
launched the establishment of a new demonstration and 

MiLK	CoLLeCtion	&	agri	SerViCeS	(MCaS)
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training	farm	(second	of	its	kind)	during	2009.	a	plot	
of	land	was	purchased	in	the	Sukheki	area	to	establish	
modern	cow	sheds	and	related	facilities	for	120	cows	and	
their	young.		building	commenced	during	March	and	the	
project	was	completed	during	august.		Local	cows	were	
purchased	and	official	milking	started	in	September.		Milk	
is being supplied to Nestlé and the farm is currently fully 
operational and produce more than 1 ton of milk per day.

a	training	facility	that	can	accommodate	20	trainees	has	
also	been	established	and	sleep-over	accommodation	
is	in	process.		Daily	and	multiple	day	training	and	
demonstration	to	existing	and	new	dairy	farmers	will	
start in the near future in order to enhance knowledge and 
practical	know-how	of	local	farmers.		the	latter	is	a	great	
need and we believe that trained farmers will be able to 
contribute to the company’s demand for quantity and 
quality milk.

the	success	of	the	project	is	due	to	the	enthusiastic	
commitment and daily contribution of practical 
experience	by	the	particular	project-,	farm-	and	assistant	
farm managers supported by an engineer from our 
technical	department.		it	once	again	demonstrated	that	
energy and team spirit are some of the ingredients that 
will	add	value	to	any	project.

sarsabz demonstration and training Farm

the	nestlé	Sarsabz	demonstration	and	training	farm	has	
become	a	good	success	and	is	fulfilling	its	purpose	as	a	

reference	point	to	upcoming	small	and	big	farms.	More	
than	4,000	people	were	trained	at	the	demonstration	farm.	

Sarsabz	farm	has	been	established	during	november	2006	
and has over time developed into a reference center which 
is been acknowledged by most organizations, farmers and 
supportive	businesses	in	the	local	dairy	environment.		its	
make-up	consists	of	imported	animals,	advanced	milking	
equipment and all the applicable facilities of a typical 
modern dairy farm.

emphasis	is	put	on	demonstration	and	training	of	the	
company’s agricultural staff, small farmers and future 
farm	managers.		one	such	initiative	has	been	executed	
during	March	till	october	which	was	financially	
supported	by	SDC	(Swiss	agency	for	Development	and	
Cooperation).		a	total	of	445	people	including	50	women	
were	trained	in	basic	best	Farm	Management	practices	
(bFMp’s)	during	this	pilot	project.		it	also	included	the	
training	of	20	farm	managers	on	an	advanced	level.		Most	
of the latter have already been absorbed in different 
positions	in	the	dairy	sector.		a	further	280	farmers	
were	accommodated	during	october	till	December	and	
enriched	by	the	demonstration	of	bFMp’s.

training	and	demonstration	at	Sarsabz	farm	is	highly	
valued	and	acknowledged	by	most	role	players.		our	
dedicated team of two training managers, farm manager 
and	expat	farm	and	training	manager,	has	ensured	a	high	
standard	of	efficiency	and	demands	for	participation	in	
future trainings are streaming in.       
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Nutrition
Nestlé Pakistan provides regular food support to 
underprivileged under its Nutrition Program in addition 
to	its	nutrition	based	products.	regular	product	donations	
are	also	given	to	old	age	homes,	and	ngos	that	support	
the destitute women and social welfare organizations. 
nestlé	also	extends	support	to	national	and	international	
communities that are victims of Natural disasters.

Water 
Clean and hygienic drinking water is a basic human 
necessity. We have helped alleviate rural suffering by 
undertaking	tube-well	and	hand	pump	installation	
schemes in selected areas. Nestlé Pakistan has also 
installed	Water	filtration	plants	for	the	communities	in	
rural perspective and has been involved in installation of 
water	filters	in	selected	schools	as	well.	

Nestlé Pakistan has also collaborated with World Wide 
Fund	for	nature	for	supporting	studies	related	to	
environment	and	Water.		

nestlé	pakistan	re-enforces	the	concept	of	“Creating	
Shared	Value”,	through	much	focused	initiatives	and	
community	projects,	which	is	embedded	into	its	business	
model. Pakistan is a developing economy and more 
than	60%	population	live	in	the	rural	areas.	there	are	
10	million	small	holder	farming	families	and	a	total	of	
56	million	dairy	animals.	there	is	a	huge	potential	of	
rural development, particularly in the livestock sector, 
where companies like Nestlé can add real value for 
improving	the	quality	of	life	in	socio-economic	terms	for	
the	rural	communities.	the	company	is	committed	to	the	
stakeholders and communities for mutual growth and 
sustainability. With the commitment to creating shared 
value,	nestlé	pakistan	is	also	a	signatory	to	un	global	
impact	for	ethical	business	practices	and	also	does	social	
investment for supporting the underprivileged and rural 
communities.	the	key	focus	areas	for	nestlé	pakistan’s	
Creating	Shared	Value	(CSV)	program	are	as	follows:

•	nutrition
•	Water
•	rural	Development

Creating	SHareD	VaLue
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Rural development
under	its	rural	Development,	nestlé	pakistan	Limited	
refurbishes	primary	Schools	in	the	most	remote	areas	of	
the	country.	Selection	of	schools	is	carried	out	keeping	
in	mind	the	nestlé	“Creating	Shared	Value	guide	lines”,	
requirements of local community and with feedback 
from	field	staff.	the	projects	for	these	schools	include	
construction of new block, addition of new class rooms 
and	repair	/	renovation	of	existing	facilities.	also	
provision	of	facilities	/	utilities,	such	as,	provision	of	
electricity, clean drinking water, computer labs, furniture, 
play ground equipment and landscaping etc are carried 
out as part of activity. 

nestlé	pakistan	Ltd.	also	donated	a	14	bed	CCu	Ward	at	
the	District	Headquarter	Hospital	Sheikhupura	which	is	
now fully functional and catering the medical needs of 
Distt	Shekhupura	and	its	surroundings.

nestlé	pakistan	also	provides	significant	support	for	
research	and	development,	and	need/	merit	based	
scholarship Programs, to some of the most prestigious 
educational institutions in the country.

Farmer development
Dairy	is	the	major	business	component	of	nestlé	pakistan	
and	the	company	collects	milk	from	150,000	associated	
farmers	spread	over	145,000	square	kilometres.	the	
farming practices are still very traditional with low yield 
animals, poor infrastructure in rural areas, lack of modern 
and	best	farm	practices	and	lack	of	skilled	farmers.	the	
sustainability	in	long	term	needs	a	CSV	based	“Dairy	
Sector	Development	approach”,	both	for	the	farmer	and	
the	industry.	nestlé	pakistan	has	established	a	formal	
agri-Services	Division	to	provide	free	of	cost	veterinary	
support to farmers in rural areas.

nestlé	pakistan	Limited	has	established	a	training	
institute	for	farmers	and	live	stock	workers	in	punjab	
where	experts	and	professionals	in	animal	husbandry,	
provide both theoretical and practical training in animal 
husbandry practices, vaccinate and treat their milk 
animals, help farmers buy feed supplements and fodder 
seeds,	and	assist	in	breed	improvement.	this	translates	
into increased milk production, better income, poverty 
alleviation and a better life for farmers creating a 
sustainable concept of shared value.

Nestlé UNdP Partnership Project
the	project	titled	as	“Community	empowerment	through	
Livestock	Development	&	Credit”	(CeLDaC),	started	
in	Sep	2006	and	successfully	ended	in	September	2009.	
During	this	three	year	program,	a	total	of	3400	female	
livestock workers were trained, covering more than 
2000	villages	in	rural	punjab	(nestlé	Component).	these	
trained women livestock workers are now successfully 
working as:

•	Livestock	Health	Caretakers
•	Village	Milk	Collection	agents
•	animal	Feed	Suppliers

Nestlé - sdC Project for Farmer development
a	new	pilot	project	in	partnership	with	Swiss	agency	
for	Development	and	Corporation	(SDC)	was	started	
with	the	aim	to	train	400	farmers	at	nestlé	Sarsabz	
and	Demonstration	farms	for	training	in	best	farm	
practices.	the	process	built	the	capacity	of			traditional	
farmers to a more progressive farmer, equipped with 
better knowledge in dairy farming resulting in higher 
yields to farmers and more sustainability in the value 
chain.	this	will	greatly	help	in	rural	poverty	reduction	
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through capacity enhancement and small entrepreneur 
development	in	Livestock	&	dairy	Farming.

Humanitarian assistance
Nestlé Pakistan with additional support from Nestlé 
has	generously	extended	its	support	to	SoS	Children’s	
Villages	of	pakistan	for	the	construction	of	an	SoS	
Children’s	Village	in	islamabad	for	the	earth	Quake	
affected	orphans	of	aJK.	the	construction	of	the	
orphanage,	which	started	in	2008,	has	been	a	lengthy	
process from land allocation to design approval but the 
same is now is underway construction and possibly will 
be	finished	during	2010.

in	2009,	about	three	million	people	were	displaced	due	to	
law	&	order	situation	in	Swat	and	Waziristan.	temporary	
relief	camps	were	established	by	the	govt.	in	different	
areas	of	nWFp	for	these	internally	displaced	people	
(iDps).	in	line	with	its	principles	of	compassion,	nestlé	
pakistan	immediately	provided	support	to	these	iDps	in	
shape of its company products.

Healthy kids Program in Pakistan
Mr.	paul	bulcke,	Ceo,	announced	at	our	Creating	
Shared	Value	Forum	in	new	York	this	year,	the	creation	
of	the	nestlé	global	Healthy	Kids	programme,	to	be	
implemented in all countries where Nestlé has operations. 
the	aim	of	this	program	will	be	to	raise	awareness	for	
addressing the nutritional needs of the school going 
Children	from	the	age	group	of	06	years	to	16	years.	the	
plan	is	to	launch	the	pilot	phase	in	2010,	with	the	objective	
of	active	program	in	2011.		nestlé	pakistan	subscribes	
fully	to	this	vision.	and	it	is	this	vision	that	will	steer	
our	way	towards	the	development	of	the	Healthy	Kid	
program for Pakistan. 

driver safety training Project
Nestlé Pakistan signed an agreement with National 
Highways	&	Motorway	police	through	which	the	
company	extended	support	for	the	development	of	a	
fully	equipped	Driver	training	facility	at	the	national	
Highways	&	Motorway	police	training	institute	at	
Sheikhupura.	this	training	facility	will	include	a	training	
Hall	equipped	with	a	Driver	training	Simulator,	with	
adjacent	offices	and	rest	room	facilities	for	the	trainees,	
and	a	driver	training	track.	this	is	first	of	its	kind	
initiative in the country which promotes the concept of 
public private partnership in Pakistan. 

the	training	facility	will	allow	participants	to	acquire	
specialized driving practices and would curb accident 
rates on motorway through requisite skills that will be 
gained during the training period. What started as a 
pilot	drivers	training	program	in	april	’08,	has	up	till	
now	resulted	in	13	batches	of	drivers,	i.e.	more	than	300	
drivers,	graduating	from	the	Motorway	training	institute	
Sheikhupura.	

this	unique	training	facility	will	not	just	provide	training	
facilities	to	the	nestlé	pakistan’s	Drivers	but	will	be	
extending	support	in	road	safety	awareness	to	the	entire	
corporate sector in the country.
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Creating shared value for the communities is a core essense of 
the company and is embedded into our business model
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products	&	brands
50 ambient dairy
52 Chilled dairy
53 Infant dietetic
54 Beverages
55 Confectionery
56 Culinary
57 Water
59 Nestlé Professional
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our	people,	products	and	brands	are	the	main	
flag	bearers	of	the	company’s	image	
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aMbient	DairY

Nestlé mIlkPak
UHT Milk
nestlé	MiLKpaK	is	the	pioneer	
brand	in	the	uHt	milk	market,	lends	
credibility and holds strong brand 
equity	with	consumers.		it	continues	
to	enjoy	market	leadership	position	
in	the	uHt	category	because	of	it’s	
excellent	product,	aggressive	sales	&	
marketing and consistent efforts from 
technical and production.

in	order	to	keep	fulfilling	the	
nutritional requirements of the 
consumers	and	create	a	significant	
differentiating	factor,	iron	Fortified	
nestlé	MiLKpaK	offers	consumers	
value	addition	in	the	form	of	iron,	
which is a very important mineral 
performing several key functions in 
the	human	body.		in	addition,	Vitamin	
C	and	a	have	also	been	added.		nestlé	
MiLKpaK	is	now	every	homemaker’s	
partner in helping her strengthen her 
home.

Nestlé sUPlIGeN
nestlé	SupLigen	is	a	milk-based	
energy	Drink	that	boosts	stamina	
and provides energy that sustains.  
it	is	fortified	with	aCtigen-e,	a	
combination of vitamins and minerals 
that ensures effective energy release 
for	optimum	performance.		till	date,	
SupLigen	has	been	well	received	in	
the	afghanistan	market.

Nestlé NIdO
Fortified Milk
one	of	the	biggest	brands	of	nestlé	
globally,	niDo	was	launched	in	
pakistan	in	1990.	Since	then	niDo	
has grown from strength to strength 
to become the mother’s most trusted 
partner in catering to her children’s 
growth	and	development.	along	with	
the natural goodness of pure milk, 
niDo	is	now	enriched	with	Minerals	
and Vitamins that help in holistic 
development of children.

Nestlé NesVIta
Pro–Bones
adult	nutrition	is	expected	to	be	
the fastest growing segment as we 
witness consumer’s shift of interests 
and increasing trend towards 
healthier	lifestyles.		to	cater	to	the	
adult	Health	&	Wellness	Solutions	in	
pakistan,	nestlé	launched	Hi-Cal	Low	
Fat	Milk	in	September	2003.		Later	on,	
in	2005	it	was	relaunched	as	nestlé	
neSVita.		in	subsequent	years,	the	
communication stress has been on 
stronger	bones	due	to	CaLCiLoCK	
(a	special	combination	of	Calcium,	
Vitamin	D	and	other	essential	
vitamins	&	minerals).

nestlé	neSVita	pro-bones	continues	
to give young urban females the 
health and inner strength they need 
to achieve a better tomorrow for 
themselves and their families.

mIlkPak
UHT Cream
MiLKpaK	uHt	cream	launched	
in	1986	is	the	market	leader	in	the	
packaged	uHt	cream	category.		it	has	
established this respectable position 
through developing a longstanding 
bond of trust with consumers based 
on	its	quality	and	24	year	history	
under	the	MiLKpaK	brand.		its	silky	
creamy	texture	is	ideal	with	delicious	
fruits, coffee and used commonly as 
a	generous	dollop	on	“naan”.		this	
brand has emotionally reached out to 
ethnic cultures through family values 
and traditions.



51
Manag eM en t 	 r e p o rt 	 2 0 0 9

aMbient	DairY

Nestlé NIdO Bunyad
the	niDo	family	added	a	new	feather	
to	its	crown	with	the	launch	of	niDo	
bunyad	in	July	2009.	niDo	bunyad	
is	for	children	between	4	to	12	years	
of	age.	it	is	positioned	towards	the	
mothers of children belonging to low 
income households so that despite the 
challenging circumstances, they can 
still give the very best to their kids. 
being	fortified	with	iron	and	Vitamin	
C,	niDo	bunyad	helps	to	overcome	
the	problem	of	iron	deficiency	
prevalent	in	the	majority	of	pakistani	
children. 

Nestlé NIdO 1+
the	niDo	family	expanded	with	the	
launch	of	niDo	1+	in	august	2005.	
it	has	been	specially	developed	for	
children from 1 to 3 years of age. 
niDo	1+	has	the	added	benefit	of	
Vitamin	a,	C,	e,	Selenium	&	zinc	that	
boosts	children’s	immunity	to	fight	
against germs, helping them grow 
strong	&	healthy.

Nestlé eVeRYdaY
Pakistan is the second largest creamed 
tea	consuming	nation	in	the	world.	to	
capitalize on this huge opportunity 
nestlé	eVerYDaY	was	launched	in	
1992.	today	it	is	recognized	as	the	best	
tea creamer in the market, due to the 
exquisite	taste	it	gives	to	tea,	through	
its	special	recipe.		eVerYDaY	is	
suited to all kinds of tea preparations, 
be	it	mixed	tea	or	separate.		the	
emotional	binding	that	eVerYDaY	
has established with its consumers 
continues to grow day by the day, 
giving it a special place in their hearts 
as well as their tea moments.

Nestlé NIdO 3+
niDo	3+	is	for	children	between	3	
to	6	years	of	age.	it	is	enriched	with	
innovative	fibers	prebio	3tM, which 
support kids in understanding and 
applying new concepts they learn. 
it	provides	essential	fatty	acids	that	
the body can’t make on its own, 
and which also help give mental 
nourishment.

Nestlé eVeRYdaY
Liquid
nestlé	eVerYDaY	Liquid,	leveraged	
by a very strong mother brand 
eVerYDaY	powder,	was	launched	
to capture the huge liquid milk 
consumption	in	tea.	introduced	in	
June	2002	in	200ml	pack,	this	brand	
has	become	a	significant	player	in	
the highly competitive liquid milk 
industry. 
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Nestlé FRUIt YOGURt
Launched	in	2001,	nestlé	Fruit	Yogurt	
range has real fruit chunks and is 
coming up as a popular healthy snack 
amongst	children	and	teenagers.	the	
range consists of strawberry, mango 
and peach yogurts.

Nestlé NesVIta
Pro-Bones
after	the	success	of	plain	Yogurt,	
nestlé	introduced	“Hi-Calcium,	Low	
Fat”	yogurt	in	2003.	the	product	
contains	less	than	1	%	fat	and	50	%	
more	calcium	than	plain	Yogurt.	in	
2005	the	product	was	re-launched	
under	the	brand	of	nestlé	neSVita	
which has helped to further 
strengthen its brand image.  

one	450	gm.	cup	of	nestlé	neSVita	
Hi-Calcium	Low	Fat	Yogurt	contains	
900	mg	of	calcium,	which	is	almost	
sufficient	to	fulfill	the	daily	adult	
requirement	of	approximately	1000	
mg of calcium as recommended by 
the	uS	Food	&	nutrition	board	(1997).	
Calcium is essential for stronger 
bones and teeth and helps combat 
osteoporosis, especially in women. 

Nestlé ZeeRa RaIta &
Nestlé POdINa RaIta 
nestlé	zeera	raita	was	launched	in	2004.	it	became	an	instant	favourite	with	
pakistani	cuisine	lovers	and	housewives.	this	was	followed	by	the	launch	of	
podina	raita	in	2006,	which	became	a	success	throughout	the	country.	in	2008,	
based	on	consumer	feedback,	podina	raita	was	made	more	‘spicy’,	in	line	with	
the	actual	homemade	recipe	and	was	a	resounding	success.	over	the	years,	
nestlé	raita	has	become	the	fastest	growing	brand	in	the	Chilled	Dairy	portfolio.	
in	2010	an	additional	upsized	SKu	was	introduced	in	both	nestlé	zeera	raita	
and	nestlé	podina	raita,	to	cater	to	the	growing	demand	for	family	consumption,	
making meals more memorable.

Nestlé
FResH ‘n’ NatURal 
daHI
Since	its	launch	in	2000,	nestlé	Fresh	
‘n’	natural	Dahi	has	maintained	its	
position	as	a	market	leader.	2008	saw	
the	re-launch	of	this	product	where,	
based on consumer feedback,  the 
“plain	Yogurt”	descriptor	gave	way	
to the new brand identity of “Nestlé 
Fresh	‘n’	natural	Dahi”.	



inFant	DietetiC

53
Manag eM en t 	 r e p o rt 	 2 0 0 9

* Mother’s milk is best for infant. Nestlé promotes 
mother’s natural milk in all its correspondence, 
infant formula packaging and all other related 
material. Nestlé also strictly follow the local as well 
as international code for protection of breast feeding 
and marketing of infant formulas. This document is 
part of company information only and may please be 
viewed accordingly.

For	the	nutrition	business,	2009	will	
be	remembered	as	a	year	of	exciting	
new launches and restoration of 
growth momentum.

Brand launches
Baby Food: March	2009	saw	the	launch	
of	CereLaC	Stage	3	in	two	variants:	
“CereLaC	with	apple,	Strawberry	
&	pear	pieces”	and	“CereLaC	
with	orange	&	apple	pieces”.	both	
variants,	targeted	to	extend	CereLaC	
consumption	beyond	the	age	of	8	
months,	offer	functional	benefits	of	
“Helping	baby	Learn	to	Chew”	and	
introducing	the	baby	to	new	textures.

Launch	of	these	variants	was	aptly	
supported by a strong campaign 
centered	around	“baby	bara	Ho	
gya”	central	idea.	response	from	
consumers has been overwhelming 
and	is	reflected	in	exceptional	sales	of	
these newly launched variants.

even	bigger	was	the	relaunch	of	
entire	portfolio	of	CereLaC	with	
addition of Probiotics, offering the 
big	internationally	claimed	benefit	
of strengthening of baby’s natural 
defenses	through	the	critical	first	year	
of	life.	the	launch	is	being	supported	
by	a	big	tV	campaign	along	with	
extensive	outdoor	presence,	medical	
detailing, sampling through health 
care	professionals	and	extensive	trade	
presence.	additionally,	the	entire	
packaging has been redesigned so 
that it is not only more vibrant, but 
also	illustrates	the	functional	benefit	
clearly.

Infant Formula:	LaCtogen	goLD	
was launched with the aim to create 
inroads into the premium segment 

by	leveraging	Strong	brand	equity	
of	LaCtogen,	owning	benefit	
based	territory	of	“gut	Comfort”.	
available	in	an	exclusive	metalized	
soft packaging, the newly designed 
goLD	color	packaging	has	received	
tremendous appreciation in the Nestlé 
world. 

Similarly,	LaCtogen	3	was	
launched	in	april	2009	as	a	Junior	
Follow	up	formula	for	infants	10	
months	and	above.	the	new	extension	
has received tremendous acceptance 
as the volumes have been increasing 
continuously on a monthly basis.

in	addition	to	the	above	launches,	
the	renovated	recipe	of	new	aL	110,	
with	beneficial	ingredients	DHa/
ara,	was	introduced	in	July	2009.	
these	new	ingredients	are	present	in	
human milk, and are important for 
adequate cell membrane structure 
and function development, and 
immunomodulation. 

extensive	launch	and	training	sessions	
were conducted with more than 
1,500	nestlé	sales	and	distribution	
personnel followed by independent 
training sessions for the medical 
detailing staff. 

Nestlé Nutrition Institute
nestlé	nutrition	institute	(nni)	
continued its activities from multiple 
clinical	platforms.	Clinical	Symposia	
on important relavant topics like 
“importance	of	breast	Feeding”	
involving	local	medical	experts,	
scientific	literature	distribution	and	
enrolment	of	1000	new	members	to	
nni	were	some	of	the	important	
initiatives	undertaken	in	2009.
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NesCaFé
neSCaFÉ	is	the	world’s	favorite	
coffee brand. No matter whether you 
like a cup of pure and black coffee 
or a frothy and creamy cappuccino 
neSCaFÉ	is	there	to	suit	your	taste	
and your mood. 
in	2009,	neSCaFÉ	continued	to	
exhibit	a	positive	growth	trend.	this	
growth is mainly attributed to focused 
distribution efforts and a timely 
consumer promotion that was rolled 
out	with	the	objective	of	increasing	
off-take.			

Nestlé FRUIta VItals
the	year	2009	continued	to	be	another	great	year	for	nestlé	
juices	which	were	renamed	nestlé	Fruita	Vitals.	they	
maintained a strong growth momentum despite aggressive 
price increases and entry of various competitive brands in 
the	juices	and	nectars	category.	Strong	growth	and	significant	
contribution	in	overall	profitability	testifies	to	the	success	
witnessed	by	this	brand.	the	200	ml	wedge	shaped	pack	was	
changed to the slim pack so as to improve chiller visibility 
and	stand-ability.	this	led	to	a	massive	growth	of	the	200	
ml	SKu	as	the	consumers	also	benefited	from	a	pack	which	
was a solution to the spillage issues associated with the 
wedge	packaging.		Moreover,	a	new	thematic	campaign	was	
launched so as to establish the brand’s new positioning of 
“rise	and	Shine	to	Life!”	the	campaign	was	a	mega	success	
as	retailing	stood	above	100%	even	during	the	off	season	and	
the	Fruita	VitaLS	facebook	page	has	an	ever	increasing	
number	of	fans	being	recruited	everyday	(11,500	to	date).	

 

Nestlé mIlO
Ready To Drink (RTD)
MiLo	rtD	is	a	major	player	in	
the	flavoured	milks	category	and	
enjoys	a	strong	association	with	
the	consumers.	Launched	in	1994,	
MiLo	rtD	has	shown	sustainable	
performance	over	the	years.	this	year	
the	200ml	wedge	pack	was	changed	
to	a	more	convenient	200ml	slim	pack,	
this helped in further enhancing the 
value	of	the	brand.	it	is	popular	with	
all age groups specially children and 
consumers who are looking for energy 
and taste and seek a healthy active 
lifestyle.

NesQUIk
2009	saw	the	addition	of	another	fun	
filled	brand	for	nestlé	pakistan	with	
the	launch	of	neSQuiK.	the	brand	
recognizes the challenge faced by the 
mums of today who continuously 
try to strike a balance between their 
kids needs e.g. good health and 
education and their wants pertaining 
to	a	fun	filled	childhood.	For	this	same	
reason	neSQuiK	is	here	to	celebrate	
childhood for kids and to become an 
ally for mom’s in their battle to get 
their kids to drink milk. 

neSQuiK	dissolves	instantly	in	both	
hot and cold milk and is available in 
the	following	SKus.

neSQuiK	Chocolate	200g
neSQuiK	Chocolate	400g
neSQuiK	Strawberry	200g
neSQuiK	Chocolate	12g	-	Single	Serve
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kIt kat
Chocolate is a small but fast growing 
segment in Pakistan.

nestlé	Kit	Kat	was	launched	in	
1996	to	make	in	roads	in	this	market.	
it	is	available	in	11g	(Mini)	17g	(two	
finger)	and	35g	(Four	finger)	sizes.	
With a focussed distribution approach 
and marketing activities the brand 
has shown potential to grow in the 
market and is a leading value driver 
for the confectionery business of the 
company in Pakistan.

kIt kat Chunky
Launched	in	pakistan	in	2005	Kit	
Kat	Chunky	is	nestlé’s	giant	single	
wafer version of the world famous 
brand	–	Kit	Kat.	the	launch	was	
part of the global strategy to make 
Kit	Kat	the	largest	selling	chocolate	
brand in the world.

Nestlé
BReakFast CeReals 
breakfast	is	an	important	meal	of	the	
day	–	and	with	good	reason.	it’s	the	
first	meal	after	your	body	has	been	
resting all night and this is the meal 
that is going to fuel the body and prep 
it	for	the	day	ahead.	available	in	three	
varieties,	neStLÉ	CornFLaKeS	
(275	g	and	150	g	boxes),	and	kids’	
favourite	chocolaty	neStLÉ	
KoKoKrunCH	(330	g	and	170	g	
boxes)	are	delicious	cereals	made	from	
wholesome grains and packed with 
Vitamins, Calcium and other minerals.
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maGGI
2-Minute Noodles
Nestlé pioneered the instant noodles 
category in Pakistan with the launch of 
Maggi	2-Minute	nooDLeS	in	1992.	
today	the	Maggi	brand	is	well	known,	
with strong equity amongst its target 
consumers.	During	2009	Maggi	has	re-
enforced its image of being a partner for 
mothers	to	deliver	good	food-moments	to	
their	kids.	Keeping	consumer	at	its	heart,	
the	brand	is	utilizing	global	r&D	expertise	
to	further	innovate	&	renovate	its	portfolio	
in the coming years.

CuLinarY
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Nestlé PURe lIFe
Home & Office Service
neStLÉ	pure	LiFe,	the	world’s	number	one	bottled	water	
brand	with	presence	in	26	countries,	was	launched	in	1998	
in Pakistan.

Nestlé Waters Pakistan is one of largest Nestlé Waters 
markets,	and	still	continues	to	grow	well	today.	this	fact	
is evident in the ever growing distribution, customer base 
and communication investments made by the company for 
its consumers.

the	brand	is	rated	as	the	most	preferred	bottled	water	
brand in Pakistan by consumers according to research 
studies.

in	2009,	the	brand	continued	to	expand	its	mission	to	
delight consumers by providing high quality, safe and 
pure drinking bottled water.

to	promote	healthy	hydration	as	part	of	health	and	
wellness,	the	8	glasses	a	day	campaign	was	used	
throughout the year in communication to educate 
consumers	on	the	need	for	adequate	hydration.	the	
communication reached consumers on platforms like 
tV,	radio,	print,	billboards,	packaging,	internet	and	poS	
materials.

the	idea	was	incorporated	in	a	nationwide	lucky	draw	
consumer	promotion	on	the	pet	format	at	the	end	of	the	
year	which	enabled	the	pet	business	to	enhance	growth	
and	enabled	the	brand	to	own	the	“8	glasses	a	Day”	
platform.

a	mega	consumer	promotion	was	launched	on	the	HoD	
format to acquire new consumers at the start of the year. 
two	more	activities	were	rolled	out	at	the	end	of	the	
year to drive consumption and sales.

to	stay	competitive	in	the	market	by	offering	the	
right price for the consumers, an innovative shrink 
wrap	packaging	solution	was	launched	on	the	pet	
format.	State	of	the	art	machinery	was	installed	in	the	
Shiekhupura	factory	in	May	2009.	this	enabled	the	
palletized shipment of the product from the factory to 
the	distributors;	increasing	the	efficiency	through	out	
the value chain. 

Water
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port	Qasim	Factory	successfully	explored	water	at	deeper	
levels.

During	the	year	there	was	a	strengthening	of	Water	
Management,	both	the	top	and	middle	management	with	
emphasis	to	further	broaden	and	strengthen	our	field	teams.

in	2009	the	distribution	of	our	Home	&	office	products	
continued to grow throughout the country and we are 
now	reaching	out	to	our	consumers	in	19	different	cities	in	
pakistan.	this	has	been	made	possible	only	through	sheer	
hard work and passion of our team. 

to	take	the	Home	&	office	Delivery	one	step	further,	in	2009	
we	decided	to	re-launch	the	brand	in	2010.	the	re-launch	is	
aimed at delighting our consumers by refreshing our image 
and further strengthening our commitment to serve them. We 
will also be communicating to consumers the importance of 
clean	drinking	water	and	encourage	them	to	‘drink	healthy,	
live	healthy’	by	continuing	to	use	neStLÉ	pure	LiFe	as	their	
only choice for drinking water.

our	product	and	communications	strategy	of	keeping	the	
‘Consumer	at	heart’	helped	us	in	further	strengthening	
consumer loyalty and trust that has further strengthened our 
brand	and	business	in	2009.

 



 

 

 

today	nestlé	professional	has	one	purpose:	to	work	
closely with operators enabling them to innovate 
and	delight	their	consumers	and	to	build	long-term	
relationships to be an inspiring growth partner.

We	fulfill	customer’s	requirements	by:	

enhancing Customer Value:
We add value to our customer’s businesses with solutions 
that satisfy their unique needs

Creativity:
We constantly generate new ideas to help our customers 
grow their business competitively 

expertise:
We share our professional resources, knowledge and 
competencies with our customers

excellence:
We aim high in everything we do and constantly 
challenge the status quo

 Nestlé Professional is dedicated to provide 
convenient,	cost-effective	and	reliable	food	
and	beverage	solutions	for	out-of-home	
establishments.

Whether	it	is	a	café,	hotel,	restaurant,	office,	
airport, university or hospital, backed with 
efficient	services	and	quality	products,	
Nestlé Professional is keen to deliver on the 
expectations	of	its	valued	customers.
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enhancing	the	quality	of	life	of	the	people	of	pakistan
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Auditors’ report to the Members

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Nestlé pakistan Limited (“the Company”) as at December 31, 2009 and the 
related	profit	and	loss	account,	statement	of	comprehensive	income,	cash	flow	statement	and	statement	of	changes	in	equity,	
together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information 
and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare 
and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the 
Companies ordinance, 1984. our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards as applicable in pakistan. these standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above 
said	statements.	An	audit	also	includes	assessing	the	accounting	policies	and	significant	estimates	made	by	management,	as	
well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for	our	opinion	and,	after	due	verification,	we	report	that:

a) in our opinion,  proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies ordinance, 1984;

b)	 in	our	opinion:

i)	 the	balance	sheet	and	profit	and	loss	account	together	with	the	notes	thereon	have	been	drawn	up	in	conformity	
with the Companies ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance 
with	accounting	policies	consistently	applied	except	for	change	referred	to	in	note	2.1	to	the	financial	statements	with	
which we concur ; 

ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was  for  the purpose of the Company’s business; and

iii) the  business  conducted, investments  made and  the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance with 
the objects of the Company;

c)	 in		our		opinion		and	to	the	best		of		our		information		and	according	to	the	explanations	given	to	us,	the	balance	sheet,	profit	
and	loss	account,	statement	of	comprehensive	income,	cash	flow	statement	and	statement	of	changes	in	equity	together	
with  the notes forming  part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in pakistan, and, give 
the information required by  the  Companies  ordinance, 1984, in the manner so  required  and respectively  give a true 
and	fair	view	of	the	state	of		the	Company’s		affairs	as	at	December	31,	2009	and	of	the	profit	and	of	its	comprehensive	
income,	its	cash	flows	and	changes	in	equity	for	the	year	then	ended;	and

d) in our opinion Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr ordinance, 1980, was deducted by the Company and 
deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that ordinance.

    kPmG taseer Hadi & Co
Lahore:	February	09,	2010		 	 Chartered	Accountants
    (Farid Uddin Ahmed)
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Balance Sheet
As at December 31, 2009

   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000)

eQUitY aNd liaBilities 

share Capital and Reserves 

Authorized capital 
75,000,000	(2008:	75,000,000)	ordinary	shares	of	Rs.	10	each	 	 	750,000		 	750,000	

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 3  453,496   453,496 
Share premium 4  249,527   249,527 
General reserve   280,000   280,000 
Accumulated	profit	 	 	3,443,932		 	3,405,824	

     4,426,955   4,388,847 

Non-current liabilities 

	Long	term	finances	 5		 	4,210,750		 	5,139,875	
 Deferred taxation 6   1,531,945   1,319,333 
	Retirement	benefits	 7		 	215,925		 	351,968	
	Liabilities	against	assets	subject	to	finance	lease	 8	 	118,275		 	177,582	

     6,076,895   6,988,758 

Current liabilities 

 Current portion of non-current liabilities 9  1,322,442   54,042 
 Short term borrowings from associated company – unsecured 10  2,105,375   – 
 Short term borrowings – secured 11  –   300,000 
	Short	term	running	finance	under	mark-up	arrangements	–	secured	 12	 	756,362		 	1,924,287	
 Customer security deposits – interest free   105,686   127,884 
 trade and other payables 13  3,746,286   2,798,185 
 Interest and mark-up accrued 14  46,979   102,173 

     8,083,130   5,306,571 
CONtiNGeNCies aNd COmmitmeNts 15

 
     18,586,980   16,684,176 
 
The	annexed	notes	1	to	44	form	an	integral	part	of	these	financial	statements.	
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   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000)

assets 

Tangible fixed assets 

property, plant and equipment 16  10,700,874   9,464,373 
Capital work-in-progress 17  914,956   1,382,401 

     11,615,830   10,846,774 

Intangible assets  18  7,106   49,744 

Long term loans and advances  19  113,490   98,544 
 
Long term security deposits    5,026   5,036 
 
Current assets 

 Stores and spares 20  868,984   804,647 
 Stock in trade 21  3,895,038   2,488,573 
 trade debts 22  241,715   456,813 
 Current portion of long term loans and advances 19  21,012   26,615 
 Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 23  1,503,009   1,488,103 
 Cash and bank balances 24  315,770   419,327 

     6,845,528   5,684,078 
 
 

     18,586,980   16,684,176 
 

Balance Sheet
As at December 31, 2009

 RaYmONd FRaNke iaN J. dONald sYed YaWaR ali
 Head of Finance and Control Chief executive Chairman
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Profit	and	Loss	Account
For the Year ended December 31, 2009

   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000)

Sales – net 25  41,155,822   34,183,847 
Cost of goods sold 26  (29,256,902)  (25,231,532)
 
Gross profit   11,898,920   8,952,315 
 
Distribution and selling expenses 27  (5,238,488)  (3,890,352)
 
Administrative expenses 28  (1,085,121)  (956,816)
 
Operating profit   5,575,311   4,105,147 
 
 Finance cost 29  (442,050)  (557,325)
 other operating expenses 30  (1,091,149)  (1,382,138)

     (1,533,199)  (1,939,463)
 
other operating income 31  144,145   61,800 
 
Profit before taxation   4,186,257   2,227,484 
 
taxation  32  (1,181,124)  (674,590)
 
Profit after taxation   3,005,133   1,552,894 
 
 
earnings per share – basic and diluted (rupees) 33  66.27   34.24 
 
The	annexed	notes	1	to	44	form	an	integral	part	of	these	financial	statements.	

 RaYmONd FRaNke iaN J. dONald sYed YaWaR ali
 Head of Finance and Control Chief executive Chairman
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2009

    2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000)

Profit after taxation  3,005,133   1,552,894 

Other comprehensive income : 

 Actuarial losses recognized directly in the equity  (29,694)  (113,827)
 tax on actuarial losses recognized directly in the equity  10,393   39,839 

other comprehensive loss for the year, net of income tax  (19,301)  (73,988)

Total comprehensive income for the year  2,985,832   1,478,906 

The	annexed	notes	1	to	44	form	an	integral	part	of	these	financial	statements.	

 RaYmONd FRaNke iaN J. dONald sYed YaWaR ali
 Head of Finance and Control Chief executive Chairman
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Cash Flow Statement
For the Year ended December 31, 2009

   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000)

Cash flow from operating activities 

Cash generated from operations 35  6,397,615   4,224,959 
Decrease in long term security deposits   10   1,052 
(Increase) in long term loans and advances   (9,343)  (23,210)
Retirement	benefits	paid	 	 	(293,122)	 	(89,867)
Finance cost paid   (497,244)  (544,413)
taxes paid   (990,053)  (41,697)

Net cash generated from operating activities   4,607,863   3,526,824 
 
Cash flow from investing activities 

 Fixed capital expenditure   (2,271,269)  (1,871,296)
 Sale proceeds of property, plant and equipment   32,995   74,233 

Net cash (used in) investing activities   (2,238,274)  (1,797,063)
 
Cash flow from financing activities 

 Short term borrowings from associated company   1,995,375   – 
 Net movement in short term borrowings – secured   (300,000)  (735,000)
	Payment	of	finance	lease	liabilities	 	 	(54,132)	 	(66,383)
 Dividend paid   (2,946,464)  (1,201,764)

Net cash (used in) financing activities   (1,305,221)  (2,003,147)
 
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   1,064,368   (273,386)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year   (1,504,960)  (1,231,574)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 36  (440,592)  (1,504,960)
 

The	annexed	notes	1	to	44	form	an	integral	part	of	these	financial	statements.	

 RaYmONd FRaNke iaN J. dONald sYed YaWaR ali
 Head of Finance and Control Chief executive Chairman
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Statement of Changes in equity
For the Year ended December 31, 2009

    Capital reserve revenue reserve

   Share Share General  Accumulated 
	 	 	 capital	 premium	 reserve	 	profit		 Total
     (rupees in ‘000)  
 
Balance as at december 31, 2007  453,496   249,527   280,000   3,128,682   4,111,705 

Final dividend for the year ended 
 December 31, 2007 (rs. 10 per share)  –     –     –     (453,496)  (453,496)
Interim dividend for the six months period ended 
 June 30, 2008 (rs. 7.5 per share)  –     –     –     (340,122)  (340,122)
Interim dividend for the nine months period ended 
 September 30, 2008 (rs. 9 per share)  –     –     –     (408,146)  (408,146)
total comprehensive income for the year  –     –     –     1,478,906   1,478,906 

Balance as at december 31, 2008  453,496   249,527   280,000   3,405,824   4,388,847 

Final dividend for the year ended 
 December 31, 2008 (rs. 25 per share)  –     –     –     (1,133,740)  (1,133,740)
Interim dividend for the six months period ended 
 June 30, 2009 (rs. 30 per share)  –     –     –     (1,360,488)  (1,360,488)
Interim dividend for the nine months period ended 
 September 30, 2009 (rs. 10 per share)  –     –     –     (453,496)  (453,496)
total comprehensive income for the year  –     –     –     2,985,832   2,985,832 

Balance as at december 31, 2009  453,496   249,527   280,000   3,443,932   4,426,955 
 
The	annexed	notes	1	to	44	form	an	integral	part	of	these	financial	statements.

 RaYmONd FRaNke iaN J. dONald sYed YaWaR ali
 Head of Finance and Control Chief executive Chairman
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended December 31, 2009

1 Legal status and nature of business    
 Nestlé pakistan Limited (“the Company”)  is a public limited company incorporated in pakistan and its shares are quoted 

on the Karachi and Lahore Stock exchanges. the principal activity of the Company is manufacturing, processing and sale 
of	food	products	(dairy,	confectionery,	culinary,	coffee,	beverages,	infant	nutrition	and	drinking	water).	Registered	office	
of the Company is situated at Babar Ali Foundation Building, 308 – Upper Mall, Lahore.  
 

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
	 The	significant	accounting	policies	adopted	in	preparation	of	financial	statements	are	set	out	below.	

 
2.1 Change in accounting policy 
	 Starting	January	01,	2009,	the	Company	has	changed	its	accounting	policies	in	the	following	areas:	

 
 the Company has applied revised IAS 1 “presentation of Financial Statements (2007)” which became effective 

from January 01, 2009. this standard required the Company to present in the statement of changes in equity all 
owner changes in equity, whereas all non-owner changes in equity are presented in statement of comprehensive 
income.   
 

	 The	Company	has	also	applied	IFRS	7	“Financial	 Instruments	Disclosures”	and	IFRS	8:	“Operating	Segments”	
from	January	01,	2009.	As	a	result,	additional	disclosures	have	been	made	relating	to	financial	instruments	and	
operating segments.

  
 the Company has changed its accounting policy with respect to capitalization of borrowing costs as per the 

transitional provision of International Accounting Standard “IAS-23 (Borrowing Costs)”. Mark-up, interest and 
other charges on long term borrowings, which were previously recognised as an expense in the period in which 
they are incurred, are now being capitalized upto the date of commissioning of the related qualifying assets, 
acquired out of the proceeds of such long term borrowings. this change in accounting policy is applicable on 
borrowing cost relating to qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalization is on or after the 
effective	date	i.e.	January	01,	2009	and	thus	has	no	impact	on	the	current	financial	statements.	 	
  

2.2 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance   
	 These	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	in	accordance	with	approved	accounting	standards	as	applicable	

in pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial reporting Standards 
(IFRS)	issued	by	the	International	Accounting	Standards	Board	as	are	notified	under	the	Companies	Ordinance,	
1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the 
provisions or directives of the Companies ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.

 
2.3 accounting convention  
	 These	financial	 statements	have	been	prepared	under	 the	historical	 cost	 convention,	except	 for	 	 recognition	of	

certain	employee	benefits	at	present	value	and	recognition	of	certain	property,	plant	and	equipment	at	recoverable	
amount.   
 

	 The	preparation	of	financial	statements	in	conformity	with	approved	accounting	standards	requires	management	
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, income and expenses. the estimates and associated assumptions and judgments are based 
on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not 
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

 the estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. revision to accounting estimates 
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period, or in the period 
of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. the areas where various 
assumptions	and	estimates	are	significant	to	Company’s	financial	statements	or	where	judgments	were	exercised	
in	application	of	accounting	policies	are	as	follows:	 	 	
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended December 31, 2009

 –  Useful life of depreciable assets   
	 –		Staff	retirement	benefits
 –  taxation
 –  provisions and contingencies   

2.4 Taxation   

	 Income	tax	on	the	profit	or	loss	for	the	year	comprises	current	and	deferred	tax.	

 Current   

 provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing 
law for taxation of income. the charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected 
to	apply	to	the	profit	for	the	year	if	enacted	after	taking	into	account	tax	credits,	rebates	and	exemptions,	if	any.	
the charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in 
previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

 Deferred   

 Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from 
differences	between	the	carrying	amount	of	assets	and	liabilities	in	the	financial	statements	and	the	corresponding	
tax	bases	used	 in	 the	computation	of	 the	 taxable	profit.	Deferred	 tax	 liabilities	are	generally	recognized	 for	all	
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profits	will	be	available	against	which	the	deductible	temporary	differences,	unused	tax	losses	and	tax	credits	can	
be utilized.

 the carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 
is	no	longer	probable	that	sufficient	taxable	profit	will	be	available	to	allow	all	or	part	of	the	deferred	tax	asset	to	
be utilized.   
 

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset 
is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except in the case 
of items credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.

 
2.5 Retirement benefits

 Defined benefit plan

	 The	Company	operates	an	approved	 funded	defined	benefit	pension	plan	 for	 its	management	 staff,	 excluding	
expatriates,	and	an	approved	funded	defined	benefit	gratuity	plan	for	all	employees,	excluding	expatriates,	having	
a	service	period	of	more	than	one	year.	Provisions	are	made	in	the	financial	statements	to	cover	obligations	on	the	
basis of actuarial valuations carried out annually under the projected unit credit method. 

 Defined contribution plan   

 the Company operates a recognized provident fund for all its regular employees, excluding expatriates. equal 
monthly contributions are made to the fund both by the Company and the employees at the rate of 12% of the basic 
salary	plus	cost	of	living	allowance.	Obligation	for	contributions	to	defined	contribution	plan	is	recognized	as	an	
expense	in	the	profit	and	loss	account	as	and	when	incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended December 31, 2009

2.6 Fixed capital expenditure and depreciation / amortization   

 Property, plant and equipment

 property, plant and equipment, except freehold land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
identified	impairment	loss.		Freehold	land	is	stated	at	cost	less	any	identified	impairment	loss.	Cost	in	relation	to	
self constructed assets includes direct cost of material, labour and applicable manufacturing overheads. 

 
 Depreciation is charged to income, unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset, on straight line 

method whereby cost of an asset is written-off over its estimated useful life at the rates given in note 16.

	 Residual	value	and	the	useful	life	of	an	asset	are	reviewed	at	least	at	each	financial	year-end.

 Depreciation on additions is charged on a pro-rata basis from the month of use, while for disposals depreciation is 
charged	up	to	the	month	of	disposal	to	profit	and	loss.	Where	an	impairment	loss	is	recognized,	the	depreciation	
charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the assets revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

 Maintenance and repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are 
capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.  Gains and losses on disposals of assets are included in 
income.   
 

 Capital work-in-progress

	 Capital	work-in-progress	is	stated	at	cost	less	any	identified	impairment	loss.
 
 intangible assets

	 Intangible	assets	are	stated	at	cost	less	accumulated	amortization	and	any	identified	impairment	loss.	These	are	
amortized using the straight line method at the rates given in note 18. Amortization on additions is charged on a 
pro-rata basis from the month of use, while for disposals amortization is charged upto the month of disposal. 
 

	 Subsequent	expenditure	on	 intangible	assets	 is	capitalized	only	when	 it	 increases	 the	 future	economic	benefits	
embodied	 in	 the	 specific	 asset	 to	which	 it	 relates.	All	 other	 expenditures	 are	 charged	 to	 income	as	 and	when	
incurred.   
 

2.7 leases

 Operating leases

	 Leases	where	a	significant	portion	of	the	risks	and	rewards	of	ownership	are	retained	by	the	lessor	are	classified	
as operating leases. payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are 
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

 
 Finance leases   

	 Leases	in	terms	of	which	the	Company	has	substantially	all	the	risks	and	rewards	of	ownership	are	classified	as	
finance	leases.	Assets	subject	to	finance	lease	are	stated	at	the	lower	of	present	value	of	minimum	lease	payments	
under	 the	 lease	 agreements	 and	 the	 fair	 value	of	 the	 assets,	 less	 accumulated	depreciation	 and	any	 identified	
impairment loss.

	 The	related	rental	obligations,	net	of	finance	costs	are	classified	as	current	and	 long	 term	depending	upon	the	
timing of the payment.   
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	 Each	 lease	payment	 is	allocated	between	 the	 liability	and	finance	costs	 so	as	 to	achieve	a	constant	 rate	on	 the	
balance outstanding. the interest element of the rental is charged to income over the lease term.

 
	 Assets	acquired	under	a	finance	lease	are	depreciated	over	the	estimated	useful	life	of	the	asset	on	a	straight-line	

method at the rates given in note 16. Depreciation of leased assets is charged to income.

	 Residual	value	and	the	useful	life	of	an	asset	are	reviewed	at	least	at	each	financial	year-end.

 Depreciation on additions to leased assets is charged from the month in which an asset is acquired, while no 
depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off.   
 

2.8 impairment losses

 Financial assets

	 A	financial	asset	is	considered	to	be	impaired	if	objective	evidence	indicate	that	one	or	more	events	had	a	negative	
effect	on	the	estimated	future	cash	flows	of	that	asset.

	 An	impairment	loss	in	respect	of	a	financial	asset		measured	at	amortized	cost	is	calculated	as	a	difference		between	
its	carrying	amount	and	the	present	value	of	the	estimated	future	cash	flows	discounted	at	the	original	effective	
interest	rate.	An	impairment	loss	in	respect	of	an	available-for-sale		financial	asset	is		calculated		by	reference	to	its	
current fair value.

	 Individually	significant	financial	assets	are	tested	for	impairment	on	a	individual	basis.	The	remaining	financial	
assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. 

 Non-financial assets

	 The	carrying	amounts	of	the	Company’s	non-financial	assets,	other	than	biological	assets,	investment	property,	
inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication 
of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and 
intangible	assets	that	have	indefinite	lives	or	that	are	not	yet	available	for	use,	recoverable	amount	is	estimated	at	
each reporting date.

 An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its 
recoverable	amount.	A	cash-generating	unit	is	the	smallest	identifiable	asset	group	that	generates	cash	flows	that	
largely are independent from other assets and groups.

	 Impairment	losses	are	recognized	in	profit	and	loss.	Impairment	losses	recognized	in	respect	of	cash-generating	
units	are	allocated	first	to	reduce	the	carrying	amount	of	any	goodwill	allocated	to	the	units	and	then	to	reduce	the	
carrying amount of the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis.

 
2.9 Financial liabilities

	 Financial	 liabilities	 are	 classified	 according	 to	 substance	 of	 contractual	 arrangements	 entered	 into.	 Significant	
financial	liabilities	include	short	and	long	term	borrowings,	trade	and	other	payables.

 
 Interest bearing borrowings

 Interest bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, these are stated at amortized cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being 
recognized		in	the	profit	and	loss	over	the	period	of	the	borrowings	on	an	effective	interest	basis.	
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 Other financial liabilities

	 All	 other	 financial	 liabilities	 are	 initially	 recognized	 at	 fair	 value	 plus	 directly	 attributable	 cost,	 if	 any,	 and	
subsequently at amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

  
2.10 Derivative financial instruments

	 Derivatives	are	recognized	initially	at	fair	value;	attributable	transaction	costs	are	recognized	in	profit	and	loss	
as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends on 
whether the derivative is designated as hedge instrument, if so the nature of item being hedged. Derivatives which 
are	not	designated	are	measured	at	fair	value,	and	changes	therein	are	accounted	for	as	an	expense	in	the	profit	and	
loss account.

 Derivatives are carried as asset when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative. there 
are no derivatives which are designated as hedge instruments. 

 
2.11 Trade and other payables  

 trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently at amortized cost using effective 
interest rate methods.

  
2.12 Provisions

 provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of	past	events	and	it	is	probable	that	outflow	of	economic	benefits	will	be	required	to	settle	the	obligation	and	a	
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. However, provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and 
adjusted	to	reflect	current	best	estimate.

  
2.13 dividend

	 Dividend	 distribution	 to	 the	 Company’s	 shareholders	 is	 recognized	 as	 a	 liability	 in	 the	 Company’s	 financial	
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved.

  
2.14 inventories

 Inventories, except for stock in transit, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined as 
follows:

 stores and spares

 Useable stores and spares are valued principally at moving average cost, while items considered obsolete are carried 
at nil value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.  

 Stock in trade

	 Cost	 of	 finished	goods,	 both	manufactured	 and	purchased,	 is	 determined	on	weighted	 average	 basis.	Cost	 in	
relation	to	work-in-process	and	finished	goods	includes	an	appropriate	portion	of	production	overheads.

 Stock in transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. 

 Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion 
and selling expenses.

 Raw and packing material

 Cost in relation to raw and packing materials is arrived at on FIFo basis.
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2.15 trade debts and other receivables

 trade debts and other receivables are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful debts 
based	on	a	review	of	all	outstanding	amounts	at	the	year	end.	Bad	debts	are	written	off	when	identified.

2.16 Revenue recognition

 revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods sold, net of discounts and 
sales	tax.	Revenue	is	recognized	when	it	 is	probable	that	the	economic	benefits	associated	with	the	transaction	
will	flow	to	the	Company	and	the	amount	of	revenue,	and	the	associated	cost	incurred,	or	to	be	incurred,		can	be	
measured reliably. 

 
 Sales of products and services are recorded when the risks and rewards are transferred i.e. on dispatch of goods/

products to customers or performance of services.
  
 Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the applicable 

rate of return.
  
2.17 Foreign currencies

 All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at 
the balance sheet date. transactions in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at 
the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are stated at fair value are translated into rupees at exchange 
rates prevailing at the date when fair values are determined. exchange gains and losses are included in the income 
currently.

  
2.18 Borrowing cost

 Mark-up, interest and other charges on borrowings are capitalised upto the date of commissioning of the related 
property, plant and equipment acquired out of the proceeds of such borrowings. All other mark-up, interest and 
other	charges	are	charged	to	profit	in	which	they	are	incurred.	

  
2.19 segment

 An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn 
revenues and incur expenses. All operating segments’ operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s 
Chief executive to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and 
for	which	discrete	financial	information	is	available.

  
2.20 Financial instruments   

	 All	financial	assets	and	liabilities	are	recognized	at	the	time	when	the	Company	becomes	a	party	to	the	contractual	
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are de-recognized when the Company loses control of the contractual 
right	that	comprise	the	financial	assets.	Financial	liabilities	are	de-recognized	when	they	are	extinguished	i.e.	when	
the	obligation	specified	in	the	contract	is	discharged,	cancelled	or	expired.	Any	gain	or	loss	on	de-recognition	of	
the	financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities	is	taken	to	profit	and	loss	account	currently.	The	particular	measurement	
methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item. 
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2.21 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

	 A	financial	asset	and	a	financial	liability	is	offset	and	the	net	amount	is	reported	in	the	balance	sheet	if	the	Company	
has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to 
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

  
2.22 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in 
hand	and	demand	deposits.	Running	finances	that	are	repayable	on	demand	are	included	as	component	of	cash	
and	cash	equivalents	for	the	purpose	of	cash	flow	statement.

  
2.23 Related Party transactions

 the Company enters into transactions with related parties on an arm’s length basis. prices for transactions with 
related parties are determined using admissible valuation methods, except in extremely rare circumstances where, 
subject to approval of the Board of Directors, it is in the interest of the Company to do so. 

2.24 Standards and amendments to published approved International Financial Reporting Standards not yet 
effective

 A number of new standards and amendments to standards are not yet effective for the year ended December 31, 
2009,	and	have	not	been	applied	in	preparing	these	financial	statements.

 Amendment to IFrS 2  Share based payment Group Cash settled Share based payment transactions – (effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2010). Currently effective IFrSs require attribution of group share 
based payment transactions only if they are equity settled. the amendments resolve diversity in practice regarding 
attribution of cash settled share based payment transactions and require an entity receiving goods or services 
in either an equity settled or a cash settled payment transaction to account for the transaction in its separate or 
individual	financial	statements.	

 revised IFrS 3 Business Combinations – (applicable for annual periods beginning on or after July 01, 2009) 
broadens	among	other	things	the	definition	of	business	resulting	in	more	acquisitions	being	treated	as	business	
combinations, contingent consideration to be measured at fair value, transaction costs other than share and debt 
issue costs to be expensed, any pre-existing interest in an acquiree to be measured at fair value, with the related 
gain	or	loss	recognized	in	profit	or	loss	and	any	non-controlling	(minority)	interest	to	be	measured	at	either	fair	
value,	 or	 at	 its	 proportionate	 interest	 in	 the	 identifiable	 assets	 and	 liabilities	 of	 an	 acquiree,	 on	 a	 transaction-
by-transaction	basis.	The	application	of	this	standard	is	not	likely	to	have	an	effect	on	the	Company’s	financial	
statements.

 Amendments to IFrS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued operations – (effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after July 01, 2009). the amendments specify that if an entity is committed to a plan to 
sell a subsidiary, then it would classify all of that subsidiary’s assets and liabilities as held for sale if criteria in 
IFrS 5 are met. this applies regardless of the entity retaining an interest (other than control) in the subsidiary; 
and	disclosures	for	discontinued	operations	are	required	by	the	parent	when	a	subsidiary	meets	the	definition	of	
a	discontinued	operation.	This	amendment	is	not	likely	to	have	any	impact	on	Company’s	financial	statements.

 
 IAS 24 related party Disclosures (revised 2009) – (effective for annual periods beginning on or after  January 

01,	 2011).	 The	 revision	 amends	 the	 definition	 of	 a	 related	 party	 and	modifies	 certain	 related	 party	 disclosure	
requirements for government-related entities. the amendment would result in certain changes in disclosures. 
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 Amended IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements – (effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after July 01, 2009) requires accounting for changes in ownership interest by the group in a subsidiary, while 
maintaining control, to be recognized as an equity transaction. When the group loses control of subsidiary, any 
interest retained in the former subsidiary will be measured at fair value with the gain or loss recognized in the 
profit	or	loss.	The	application	of	the	standard	is	not	likely	to	have	an	effect	on	the	Company’s	financial	statements.

	 Amendment	to	IAS	32	Financial	Instruments	Presentation	Classification	of	Rights	Issues	–	(effective	for	annual	
periods beginning on or after February 01, 2010). the IASB amended IAS 32 to allow rights, options or warrants to 
acquire	a	fixed	number	of	the	entity’s	own	equity	instruments	for	a	fixed	amount	of	any	currency	to	be	classified	
as equity instruments provided the entity offers the rights, options or warrants pro-rata to all of its existing 
owners of the same class of its own non-derivative equity instruments. this interpretation has no impact on the 
Company’s	financial	statements.

 Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments recognition and Measurement  eligible Hedged Items – (effective 
for	 annual	 periods	 beginning	 on	 or	 after	 July	 01,	 2009)	 clarifies	 the	 application	 of	 existing	 principles	 that	
determine	whether	specific	risks	or	portions	of	cash	flows	are	eligible	for	designation	in	a	hedging	relationship.	
The	amendment	is	not	likely	to	have	an	effect	on	the	Company’s	financial	statements.

	 Amendments	to	IFRIC	14	IAS	19	The	Limit	on	a	Defined	Benefit	Assets,	Minimum	Funding	Requirements	and	
their Interaction – (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2011). these amendments 
remove unintended consequences arising from the treatment of prepayments where there is a minimum funding 
requirement. these amendments result in prepayments of contributions in certain circumstances being recognized 
as	an	asset	rather	 than	an	expense.	This	amendment	 is	not	 likely	 to	have	any	 impact	on	Company’s	financial	
statements.

 IFrIC 15 Agreement for the Construction of real estate – (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
October	01,	2009)	clarifies	the	recognition	of	revenue	by	real	estate	developers	for	sale	of	units,	such	as	apartments	
or houses, ‘off-plan’, that is, before construction is complete. the amendment is not relevant to the Company’s 
operations.

 IFrIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to owners – (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
July  01, 2009) states that when a company distributes non-cash assets to its shareholders as dividend, the 
liability for the dividend is measured at fair value. If there are subsequent changes in the fair value before 
the liability is discharged, this is recognized in equity. When the non-cash asset is distributed, the difference 
between the carrying amount and fair value is recognized in the income statement. As the Company  does not 
distribute	non-cash	assets	to	its	shareholders,	this	interpretation	has	no	impact	on	the	Company’s	financial	
statements. 

 IFrIC 19 extinguishing Financial Liabilities with equity Instruments – (effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after July 01, 2010). this interpretation provides guidance on the accounting for debt for equity swaps. this 
interpretation	has	no	impact	on	the	Company’s	financial	statements.	 	 	
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    2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000)

3 issued, subscribed and paid up capital 

	 29,787,058	(2008:	29,787,058)	ordinary	shares	of	Rs.	10	each	
     as fully paid in cash  297,870   297,870 
	 15,476,867	(2008:	15,476,867)	ordinary	shares	of	Rs.	10	each		
     as fully paid bonus shares  154,769   154,769 
	 85,659	(2008:	85,659)	ordinary	shares	of	Rs.	10	each	issued	for		
     consideration other than cash  857   857 

    453,496   453,496 
 
	 As	at	December	31,	2009,	Nestlé	S.A.	Switzerland,	 the	holding	company,	holds	26,778,229	 (2008:	26,778,229)	ordinary	

shares	of	the	Company.	In	addition,	8,789,082	(2008:	8,753,766)	ordinary	shares	are	held	by	the	following	related	parties	
as	at	December	31,	2009:	

 
    2009 2008
    (Numbers of shares)

 Name of related party: 

 International General Insurance Company of Pakistan Limited  4,355,213   4,319,897 

	 Percentage	of	equity	held	9.6%	(2008:	9.5%)	

 Packages Limited  3,649,248   3,649,248 

	 Percentage	of	equity	held	8.0%	(2008:	8.0%)	

 Gurmani Foundation  762,955   762,955 

	 Percentage	of	equity	held	1.7%	(2008:	1.7%)	

 industrial technical and educational institution  21,666   21,666 

	 Percentage	of	equity	held	0.05%	(2008:	0.05%)	

    8,789,082   8,753,766 
 
4 share premium 

	 This	reserve	can	be	utilized	by	the	Company	only	for	the	purposes	specified	in	section	83(2)	of	the	Companies	Ordinance,	
1984. 

 
   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000)

5 Long term finances  

	 Long	term	finances	utilized	under	mark-up	arrangements:	

 Related party – Unsecured 

 Associated company – Foreign currency 5.1  5,473,975   5,139,875 
	 Less	:	current	maturity	 9	 	(1,263,225)	 	–	

    4,210,750   5,139,875 
 



79
F I N A N C I A L  r e p o r t  2 0 0 9

   Gratuity pension 

   2009 2008 2009 2008
   (rupees in ‘000) (rupees in ‘000) 

7.1 Present value of funded obligations: 

 Amounts recognized in the balance  
	 	 sheet	are	as	follows:	

	 Present	value	of	defined	benefit	obligation	 	512,304		 	429,967		 	651,918		 	474,713	
 Fair value of plan assets  (392,936)  (178,223)  (555,361)  (374,489)

	 Total	employee	benefit	obligation	 	119,368		 	251,744		 	96,557		 	100,224	
 
7.2 movement in net obligation: 

 Net liability as at 01 January  251,744   133,609   100,224   104,761 
	 Charge	to	profit	and	loss	account	 	92,545		 	59,731		 	45,233		 	29,907	
 Actuarial (gains)/losses recognized in equity  (29,027)  107,344   58,721   6,483 
 Contribution made by the employees  –     –     21,175   17,662 
 Contribution made by the Company  (195,894)  (48,940)  (128,796)  (58,589)

    119,368   251,744   96,557   100,224 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended December 31, 2009

 Terms of repayment and securities 

5.1 this represents US$ 65 million loan from Nestlé treasury Centre Middle east and Africa Limited, Dubai. US$ 15 
million is due in December 2010 and US$ 50 million is due in May 2011. Mark-up is payable semi annually at six 
months average LIBor plus 150 basis points. 

 
   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000)

6 Deferred taxation 

	 This	is	composed	of:	

 Liability for deferred taxation comprising
	 			temporary	differences	related	to:	
 Accelerated tax depreciation  1,545,561   1,319,333 
 others  (13,616)  – 

    1,531,945   1,319,333 

7 Retirement benefits 

 pension fund  7.1  96,557   100,224 
 Gratuity fund 7.1  119,368   251,744 

    215,925   351,968 
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   Gratuity pension 

   2009 2008 2009 2008
   (rupees in ‘000) (rupees in ‘000)

7.3 Movement in the liability for funded  
  defined benefit obligations: 

	 Liability	for	defined	benefit	obligations	
     as at 01 January  429,967   349,287   474,713   474,019 
	 Benefits	paid	by	the	plan	 	(29,372)	 	(14,346)	 	(13,890)	 	(9,799)
 Current service costs  54,783   50,683   51,374   44,478 
 Interest cost  64,495   34,929   71,207   47,402 
 Actuarial losses/(gains) on present  
	 	 value	of	defined	benefit	obligations	 	(7,569)	 	9,414		 	68,514		 	(81,387)

	 Liability	for	defined	benefit	obligations	
  as at 31 December  512,304   429,967   651,918   474,713 
 
7.4 Movement in fair value of plan assets: 

 Fair value of plan assets as at 01 January  178,223   215,678   374,489   369,258 
 Contributions paid into the plan  195,894   48,940   128,796   58,589 
	 Benefits	paid	by	the	plan	 	(29,372)	 	(14,346)	 	(13,890)	 	(9,799)
 expected return on plan assets  26,733   25,881   56,173   44,311 
 Actuarial gains/(losses) on plan assets  21,458   (97,930)  9,793   (87,870)

 Fair value of plan assets as at 31 December  392,936   178,223   555,361   374,489 
 
7.5 Plan assets consist of the following: 

 equity instruments  55,382   63,277   53,663   54,389 
 Debt instruments  108,845   42,359   177,855   66,848 
 Cash and other deposits  228,709   72,587   323,843   253,252 

    392,936   178,223   555,361   374,489 
 
7.6 Salaries, wages and amenities include the 
  following in respect of retirement 
  and other benefits: 

 Interest cost for the year  64,495   34,929   71,207   47,402 
 Current service cost  54,783   50,683   51,374   44,478 
 expected return on plan assets  (26,733)  (25,881)  (56,173)  (44,311)
 Contribution made by the employees  –     –     (21,175)  (17,662)

    92,545   59,731   45,233   29,907 

7.7 Charge for the year has been allocated as follows: 

 Cost of goods sold  35,521   18,703   13,309   11,963 
 Distribution and selling expenses  35,673   25,888   16,343   9,649 
 Administrative expenses  21,351   14,577   15,581   7,539 
 Capitalized during the year  –     563   –     756 

    92,545   59,731   45,233   29,907 
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   2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
   (rupees in ‘000)

7.10 Historical Information for Gratuity plan: 

	 Present	value	of	defined	benefit	obligation	 512,304		 	429,967		 	349,287		 	286,258		 	227,662	
 Fair value of the plan assets (392,936)  (178,223)  (215,678)  (151,918)  (139,543)

	 Deficit	in	the	plan	 119,368		 	251,744		 	133,609		 	134,340		 	88,119	
 
 experience adjustments arising on plan liabilities 7,569   (9,414)  (14,219)  (17,739)  (29,261)
 experience adjustments arising on plan assets 21,458   (97,930)  19,175   (30,485)  2,877 
 
 the Company expects to pay rs. 62.102 million in contributions to gratuity fund in 2010. 
 
   2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
   (rupees in ‘000)

7.11 Historical Information for Pension plan: 

	 Present	value	of	defined	benefit	obligation	 651,918		 	474,713		 	474,019		 	377,539		 	349,904	
 Fair value of the plan assets (555,361)  (374,489)  (369,258)  (277,574)  (222,139)

	 Deficit	in	the	plan	 96,557		 	100,224		 	104,761		 	99,965		 	127,765	
 
 experience adjustments arising on plan liabilities (68,514)  81,387   (20,553)  (14,782)  (36,869)
 experience adjustments arising on plan assets 9,793   (87,870)  18,902   (7,973)  8,721 
 
 the Company expects to pay rs. 53.874 million in contributions to pension fund in 2010. 

   Gratuity pension 

   2009 2008 2009 2008
   (rupees in ‘000) (rupees in ‘000)

7.8 actual return on plan assets  48,191   72,049   65,966   43,559 
 
7.9 Actuarial gains and (losses) recognized  
  directly in the equity: 

 Cumulative amount at 01 January  (220,638)  (113,294)  (64,051)  (57,568)
 Gains/(losses) recognized during the year  29,027   (107,344)  (58,721)  (6,483)

 Cumulative amount at 31 December  (191,611)  (220,638)  (122,772)  (64,051)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended December 31, 2009



82
N e s t l é  P a k i s t a N  l i m i t e d

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended December 31, 2009

7.12 Significant actuarial assumptions used for valuation of these plans are as follows:

   2009 2008 

   Gratuity fund pension fund Gratuity fund pension fund
   per annum per annum per annum per annum

 
 Discount rate 12% 12% 15% 15%
 expected rates of salary increase 12% 12% 15% 15%
 expected rates of return on plan assets  15% 15% 12% 12%
 Average expected remaining working life 13 13 13 13

    2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

8 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease  

 present value of minimum lease payments  177,492 231,624  
	 Less:	Current	portion	shown	under	current	liabilities	 	 (59,217)	 (54,042)

    118,275 177,582 
  
	 The	lease	has	been	obtained	under	Kissan	Dost	Livestock	Development	Scheme.	As	per	the	terms	of	agreement,	the	finance	

cost will be paid by pakistan Dairy Development Company (pDDC). the interest rate ranges from average 6 months to 
1	year	KIBOR	plus	200	basis	points	with	a	floor	of	10%	per	annum	and	agency	fee	(profit)	under	Ijarah	agreement	ranges	
from 14.01% to 17% per annum.  

  
	 The	amount	of	future	payments	of	the	lease	and	the	period	in	which	these	payments	will	become	due	are	as	follows:

    2009   2008 

 Years Minimum Finance principal  Minimum Finance principal
   lease  cost   lease cost
   payments   payments
     (rupees in ‘000)   (rupees in ‘000)

 Not later than one year 59,217 – 59,217 54,042   –    54,042  
 Later than one year but not later 
	 				than	five	years	 118,275	 –	 118,275	 177,582		 	–			 	177,582		

   177,492 – 177,492 231,624   –    231,624 

   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

9 Current portion of non-current liabilites  

 Associated company – Foreign currency 5  1,263,225   – 
	 Liabilities	against	assets	subject	to	finance	lease	 8	 	59,217		 	54,042	

     1,322,442   54,042

10 Short term borrowings from associated company – unsecured 

 this represents short term foreign currency loan obtained from Nestlé treasury Centre Middle east and Africa Limited 
Dubai,	which	carries	mark-up	at	the	rate	of		6	months	LIBOR	plus	100	basis	points	(2008:	Nil).	The	outstanding	balance	
as at December 31, 2009 is converted into pak rupees at the rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. 
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11 Short term borrowings – secured 

 this represented money market loans obtained from various commercial banks, which carried mark-up ranging from 
13.00%	to	16.62%	per	annum	(2008:	9.71%	to	16.62%	per	annum).	These	loans	were	obtained	for	a	period	of	30	days	(2008:	
30 days to 90 days) and were secured against pari passu hypothecation charge over current assets of the Company. the 
outstanding loan amount was repaid in June 2009. 

  
12 Short term running finance under mark-up arrangements – secured 

	 Short	term	running	finances	available	from	commercial	banks	under	mark-up	arrangements	amount	to	Rs.	7,073	million	
(2008	:	Rs.	4,300	million).	Mark-up	is	charged	at	rates	ranging	from	11.67%	to	17.37%	per	annum	(2008	:	9.92%	to	17.58%	
per annum).  

  
	 These	 running	finances	 under	mark-up	 arrangements	 are	 secured	 by	 hypothecation	 charge	 over	 fixed	 assets,	 stores,	

stocks and assignment of receivables. 

   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

13 Trade and other payables 

 trade creditors 

  related parties – associated companies   356,361   608,126 
  others   1,117,200   406,220 

     1,473,561   1,014,346 
 Accrued liabilities 

  related parties – associated companies   30,413   181,569 
  others   1,715,138   1,198,881 

     1,745,551   1,380,450 
 excise duty payable   13,799   14,044 
 Advances from customers   180,391   88,069 
	 Workers	profit	participation	fund	 13.1	 	60,640		 	9,250	
 Workers welfare fund    85,434   149,473 
	 Derivative	financial	liability	 	 	42,267		 	–			
 royalty and technical assistance fee payable to holding company   96,261   89,566 
 Unclaimed dividend   4,257   2,997 
 Withholding tax payable   1,456   24,872 
 Withholding sales tax payable   21,453   –   
 others   21,216   25,118 

     3,746,286   2,798,185 
 

13.1 Workers profit participation fund 

 opening balance   9,250   96,156 
 provision for the year 30  224,826   119,629 

    234,076   215,785 
	 Less:	Payments	during	the	year	 	 	(173,436)	 	(206,535)

 Closing balance   60,640   9,250 
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    2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

14 Interest and mark-up accrued 

 Short term borrowings    –     1,090 
	 Short	term	running	finances	–	secured	 	 	8,818		 	44,460	
 Long term loan from associated company – unsecured   38,161   56,623 

     46,979   102,173 

15 Contingencies and commitments 

15.1	 In	2002,	Shaheed	Zulfiqar	Ali	Bhutto	Institute	of	Science	and	Technology	(SZABIST)	filed	a	petition	against	the	
Government of Sindh challenging cancellation of its allotment of 300 acres of land in the Deh Chur allotted to it 
earlier and later made the Company a party to the suit, claiming that the land, the Company had acquired was part 
of its cancelled land. 

 
 the Company contested the SZABISt claim on the grounds that land acquired by the Company could not be 

claimed by SZABISt since (a) SZABISt did not have the area demarcated as per regulations after it was allotted 
to	 it	 (b)	 it	did	not	 take	official	possession	of	 the	 land,	and	 (c)	 the	 land	was	cancelled	by	operation	of	 law	and	
hence it was only a dispute between SZABISt and the Government of Sindh. the Court agreed and directed the 
Government of Sindh to conduct a survey and set aside 300 acres of land for SZABISt in Deh Chur in case its claim 
is	finally	accepted	by	the	Court.	As	such	it	is	the	management’s	view	that	the	Company	is	likely	to	be	discharged	
as a party to the suit as soon as the 300 acres are earmarked by Sindh Government in Deh Chur. Furthermore, 
the	 legal	advisor	of	 the	Company	 is	of	 the	opinion	 that	at	present	no	 liability	 is	 likely	 to	arise	 subject	 to	final	
adjudication of the SZABISt petition. 

 
15.2	 Claims	against	the	Company	not	acknowledged	as	debt	amount	to	Rs.	35.793	million	(2008:	Rs.	35.809	million).	
 

    2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

15.3 Guarantees 

 outstanding guarantees   183,300   160,053 

 Un-utilized portion   61,700   184,947 
 
15.4 Commitments in respect of capital expenditure    74,053   253,873 
 
15.5 Letters of credit 

 outstanding letters of credit in respect of capital expenditure   –     370,172 

 other outstanding letters of credit   23,369   57,097 

 Un-utilized portion   1,107,731   1,109,731 
 
15.6 In 2005, the Company had made a commitment to pay  rs. 250 million to National Management Foundation to 

set up a School for Science and engineering. the amount is to be paid over a period of six years upto 2010. rs. 220 
million has been paid up till December 31, 2009, while rs. 40 million has been accounted for during the year. 
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16 Property, plant and equipment
      owned assets     Leased assets  
	 	 	 Freehold		 Lease	 Building	on	 Building	on	 Plant	and	 Furniture	and	 Vehicles	 Office	 Plant	and	 Total
	 	 	 Land		 	hold	land		 freehold	land	 lease	hold	land	 machinery	 fixtures	 	 equipment	 machinery
        (rupees in ‘000)  
 Cost 

 Balance as at January 01, 2008  486,360   32,347   1,908,978   219,273   9,980,362   123,962   332,836   5,994   172,980   13,263,092 
 Additions during the year  –     –     87,075   –     1,249,675   84,361   38,967   –     148,542   1,608,620 
 Disposals  –     –     (8,917)  –     (178,685)  (3,265)  (103,838)  (27)  –      (294,732)

 Balance as at December 31, 2008  486,360   32,347   1,987,136   219,273   11,051,352   205,058   267,965   5,967   321,522   14,576,980 
 
 Balance as at January 01, 2009  486,360   32,347   1,987,136   219,273   11,051,352   205,058   267,965   5,967   321,522   14,576,980 
 Additions during the year  194,205   –     173,649   –     2,300,317   13,499   57,044   –     –     2,738,714 
 Disposals  (111)  –     (2,065)  –     (468,500)  (20,945)  (67,489)  (479)  –     (559,589)

 Balance as at December 31, 2009  680,454   32,347   2,158,720   219,273   12,883,169   197,612   257,520   5,488   321,522   16,756,105 
 
 depreciation and impairment losses 
 Balance as at January 01, 2008  –     2,386   295,568   134,056   3,468,425   73,649   197,517   5,046   12,017    4,188,664 
 Depreciation charge for the year  –     361   57,892   3,005   946,500   17,020   46,594   553   21,996    1,093,921 
 Depreciation on disposals  –     –     (1,867)  –     (125,268)  (2,925)  (95,891)  (27)  –     (225,978)
 Impairment charge  –     –     –     –     56,000   –     –     –     –     56,000 

 Balance as at December 31, 2008  –     2,747   351,593   137,061   4,345,657   87,744   148,220   5,572   34,013   5,112,607 
 
 Balance as at January 01, 2009  –     2,747   351,593   137,061   4,345,657   87,744   148,220   5,572   34,013   5,112,607 
 Depreciation charge for the year  –     363   61,647   3,120   1,049,611   30,107   39,557   390   28,260   1,213,055 
 Depreciation on disposals  –     –     (208)  –     (398,173)  (18,846)  (47,789)  (478)  –     (465,494)
 Impairment charge  122,639   –     –     –     72,424   –     –     –     –     195,063 

 Balance as at December 31, 2009  122,639   3,110   413,032   140,181   5,069,519   99,005   139,988   5,484   62,273   6,055,231 

 Net book value as at December 31, 2008  486,360   29,600   1,635,543   82,212   6,705,695   117,314   119,745   395   287,509   9,464,373 

 Net book value as at December 31, 2009  557,815   29,237   1,745,688   79,092   7,813,650   98,607   117,532   4   259,249   10,700,874 

 rate of depreciation in %  –     1 – 6.67  2 – 5 2 – 5 4 – 33 20 20 20 6.67 – 20 
 

   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

16.1 Depreciation charge for the year 
    has been allocated as follows: 

 Cost of goods sold 26  991,926   896,521 
 Distribution and selling expenses 27  149,966   127,629 
 Administrative expenses 28  71,047   69,744 
 Capitalised during the year   116   27 

    1,213,055   1,093,921 
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16.2 Detail of certain property, plant and equipment sold during the year is as follows:

    Accumulated   Book   Sale  Mode of         
Description Cost  depreciation   value   proceeds  disposal Sold to 

   (rupees in ‘000)     
     
 Freehold land 
   111   –     111   220  Sale (employee) Aslam Javed
 
 Building  
   1,383   67   1,316   –    Written-off  LDC Building
      on vacation returned to Landlord 
   682   141   541   49  Sale Haider engineering Co.
 
 Plant and machinery  
   24,246   19,148   5,098   –    Scrapped Various 
   28,340   24,173   4,166   –    Scrapped Various 
   2,560   1,075   1,484   144  Sale Haider engineering Co.
   3,001   1,915   1,086   –    Scrapped Various 
   1,581   566   1,014   –    Scrapped Various 
   1,125   256   869   –    Scrapped Various 
   1,437   600   837   –    Scrapped Various 
   1,437   688   749   –    Scrapped Various 
   2,902   2,168   734   –    Scrapped Various 
   2,913   2,396   517   59  Sale Haider engineering Co.
   660   242   418   –    Scrapped Various 
   2,326   2,011   314   –    Scrapped Various 
   1,119   817   302   32  Sale Haider engineering Co.
   7,292   7,014   278   –    Scrapped Various 
   575   324   251   –    Scrapped Various 
   575   324   251   –    Scrapped Various 
   575   324   251   –    Scrapped Various 
   2,055   1,812   243   –    Scrapped Various 
   371   155   216   27  Sale Maqsood Barlas & Brothers
   473   263   210   –    Scrapped Various 
   5,340   5,137   203   –    Scrapped Various 
   900   700   200   –    Scrapped Various 
   399   200   200   –    Scrapped Various 
   362   181   181   –    Scrapped Various 
   499   318   180   –    Scrapped Various 
   193   16   177   –    Scrapped Various 
   1,227   1,057   170   –    Scrapped Various 
   556   386   170   –    Scrapped Various 
   1,476   1,312   164   –    Scrapped Various 
   422   269   152   –    Scrapped Various 
   900   750   150   –    Scrapped Various 
   600   450   150   –    Scrapped Various 
   331   184   148   –    Scrapped Various 
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    Accumulated   Book   Sale  Mode of         
Description Cost  depreciation   value   proceeds  disposal Sold to 

   (rupees in ‘000)     

   276   130   146   –    Scrapped Various 
   731   601   130   15  Sale Haider engineering Co.
   661   532   129   –    Scrapped Various 
   270   143   127   –    Scrapped Various 
   465   340   125   14  Sale riaz traders 
   1,860   1,741   118   57  Sale riaz traders 
   229   121   108   –    Scrapped Various 
   201   93   108   –    Sale Maqsood Barlas & Brothers
   905   798   107   –    Scrapped Various 
   409   302   107   11  Sale Haider engineering Co.
   765   659   106   –    Scrapped Various 
   412   309   103   –    Scrapped Various 
   230   127   103   –    Scrapped Various 
   230   127   103   –    Scrapped Various 
   256   155   101   –    Scrapped Various 
   198   99   99   –    Scrapped Various 
   167   70   97   9  Sale Haider engineering Co.
   367   275   92   –    Scrapped Various 
   325   235   90   –    Scrapped Various 
   539   449   90   –    Scrapped Various 
   3,317   3,235   81   101  Sale riaz traders 
   297   217   80   8  Sale Haider engineering Co.
   601   521   80   –    Scrapped Various 
   222   142   80   –    Scrapped Various 
   100   23   77   90  Sale Maqsood Barlas & Brothers
   600   529   71   –    Scrapped Various 
   4,225   4,155   71   129  Sale riaz traders 
   160   90   70   –    Scrapped Various 
   124   55   69   –    Scrapped Various 
   146   77   69   –    Scrapped Various 
   293   225   68   –    Scrapped Various 
   99   33   66   7  Sale Haider engineering Co.
   3,900   3,835   65   119  Sale riaz traders 
   191   127   64   –    Scrapped Various 
   1,600   1,539   61   –    Scrapped Various 
   116   56   60   –    Scrapped Various 
   135   78   57   13  Sale Maqsood Barlas & Brothers
   135   78   57   13  Sale Maqsood Barlas & Brothers
   135   78   57   13  Sale Maqsood Barlas & Brothers
   476   420   56   –    Scrapped Various 
   94   39   55   2  Sale Maqsood Barlas & Brothers
   127   74   53   –    Scrapped Various 
   944   892   52   –    Scrapped Various 
   1,371   1,319   52   –    Scrapped Various 
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    Accumulated   Book   Sale  Mode of         
Description Cost  depreciation   value   proceeds  disposal Sold to 

   (rupees in ‘000)     

   68   17   51   61  Insurance  Insurance Claim
      claims received
 Furniture and fixtures 
   863   633   230   62  Sale Maqsood Barlas & Brothers
   642   470   171   46  Sale Maqsood Barlas & Brothers
   198   63   135   162  Sale BAF Forms Sukkekhi 
   130   37   93   112  Sale BAF Forms Sukkekhi 
   608   516   91   43  Sale Maqsood Barlas & Brothers
   125   58   67   9  Sale Maqsood Barlas & Brothers
 
 Vehicles 
   360   150   210   290  Sale employee (Waqar Ahmad)
   360   156   204   277  Sale employee (rozeena Kauser)
   831   637   194   400  Sale employee (Muhammad Akhter)
   360   168   192   269  Sale employee (Asif Ali) 
   360   168   192   264  Sale employee (Sarah rizwan)
   560   382   177   371  Sale employee (Allah Ditta Bhatti)
   360   186   174   266  Sale employee (Muhammad Asghar)
   831   678   152   460  Sale employee (Bashir Ahmad)
   831   692   138   480  Sale employee (Qaiser Abbas)
   560   438   121   353  Sale employee (Mubarik Ali Wassi)
   1,169   1,072   97   280  Sale employee (ejaz Haider)
   831   748   83   520  Sale employee (M. Asif Chaudhry)
   360   282   78   192  Sale employee (Atif Munir)
   791   723   67   400  Sale employee (raheel Afzal)
 Assets with book 
    value less than 
    rs. 50,000  418,543   354,638   63,917   26,546  
 
 total  559,589   465,494   94,095   32,995  
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   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

17 Capital work-in-progress 

 Civil works    70,122   88,559 
 plant and machinery   17.1  841,440   1,285,430 
 others     3,394   8,412 

     914,956   1,382,401 
 

17.1	 There	was	no	plant	and	machinery	in	transit	at	the	year	end	(2008:	Nil).	
 
   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

18 intangible assets 

 Cost 

 Balance as at 01 January   213,189   213,189 
 Amortization 

 Balance as at 01 January   (163,445)   (120,807) 
 Charge for the year   (42,638)   (42,638) 

 Accumulated amortization as at 31 December   (206,083)   (163,445) 

 Net book value as at 31 December   7,106   49,744 
 
 Amortization rate  20% 20%
 
19 long term loans and advances  

 To employees – secured and considered good 

 executives 19.1  55,774   59,527 
 other employees   28,431   16,081 

     84,205   75,608 
 To suppliers – unsecured and considered good 19.2  22,647   45,551 
 to others 19.3  27,650   4,000 

     134,502   125,159 
	 Less:	current	portion	shown	under	current	assets	 	 	(21,012)		 	(26,615)	

     113,490   98,544 
 

19.1 these represent long term interest free loans to employees for the purchase of cars and motor cycles as per the 
Company policy and are repayable within a period of 5 years. Loans are secured by registration of vehicles in the 
name of the Company for collateral purpose. 

 
 the maximum amount of loans and advances to executives outstanding at the end of any month during the year 

was	Rs.	55.774	million	(2008	:	Rs.	59.527	million).	
 
	 Chief	Executive	and	Directors	have	not	taken	any	loans	and	advances	from	the	Company	(2008:	Nil).	
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    2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

 Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans to executives 

 opening balance   59,527   26,514 
 Disbursements during the year   15,720   31,750 
 promotion of non-executive employees as executives   40   9,081 
 Loans recovered during the year   (19,513)  (7,818)

 Closing balance   55,774   59,527 
 

19.2 This	includes	an	un-secured	loan	of	Rs.	13.160	million	(2008:	Rs.	14.805	million)	given	to	Sui	Northern	Gas	Pipelines	
Limited for the development of infrastructure for supply of natural gas to the plant at Kabirwala. Mark-up is 
charged	at	the	rate	of	1.5%	per	annum	(2008:	1.5%	per	annum)	and	is	receivable	annually.	This	amount	is	receivable	
in 10 equal annual installments which commenced from october 2008. 

 
19.3 this represents an interest free loan given to Babar Ali Foundation (the Foundation) to establish an educational 

agricultural farm/training facility for the farmers. this loan will be repaid through operational income generated 
by the farm. the Chairman of the Foundation is director of the Company. 

 
    2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

20 stores and spares 

 Stores   54,767   47,302 
	 Spares,	including	in	transit	Rs.	2.801	million	(2008:	Nil)	 	 	814,217		 	757,345	

     868,984   804,647 
 

20.1 Stores	and	spares	include	items	which	may	result	in	fixed	capital	expenditure	but	are	not	distinguishable.	
 
   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

21 Stock in trade 

 raw and packing materials including 
	 			in	transit	Rs.492.827	million	(2008:	Rs.	348.084	million)	 	 	2,462,307		 	1,787,846	
 Work-in-process   175,868   180,897 
 Finished goods   1,110,886   386,408 
 Goods purchased for resale including 
	 			in	transit	Rs.51.534	(2008:	Nil)	 	 	145,977		 	133,422	

     3,895,038   2,488,573 
 
22 trade debts 

 Considered good – unsecured   241,715   456,813 
 Considered doubtful – unsecured   1,824   1,749 

     243,539   458,562 
	 Less:		Provision	for	doubtful	debts	 22.1	 	(1,824)		 	(1,749)	

     241,715   456,813 
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   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

22.1 Provision for doubtful debts 

 opening balance   1,749   1,749 
 Addition during the year   976   –   
	 Less:	write	off	during	the	year	 	 	(901)	 	–			

 Closing balance   1,824   1,749 

23 Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 

 Advances to employees – secured and considered good 23.1  948   844 
 Advances to suppliers – unsecured and considered good    125,028   429,994 
 Due from related parties – unsecured and considered good 23.2  165,231   75,962 
 trade deposits and prepayments – considered good   116,310   109,614 
 Income tax recoverable   110,593   89,052 
 Sales tax refundable   887,753   645,332 
 other receivables – considered good   97,146   137,305 

     1,503,009   1,488,103 
 

23.1 	 Chief	Executive	and	Directors	have	not	taken	any	advance	from	the	Company	(2008:	Rs.	Nil).	

    2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

 23.2  Due from related parties 

	 Foreign	Associated	Companies:	
 Nestrade   127,465   48,446 
 Nestlé China Limited   121   –   
 pt Nestlé Indonesia   –   250 
 Nestlé Vietnam Limited   122   181 
 Nestlé egypt S.A.e.   –   1,261 
 Nestlé Middle east FZe   837   566 
 Nestlé Nederland B.V.   139   47 
 Nestlé Qingdao Limited   –     17 
 Nestlé Suisse S.A.   –     8,457 
 Quality Coffee products Limited   –     7,503 
 Nestlé Australia Limited   –     1,116 
 Nestlé philippines Inc.   104   –   
 CpW philippines   5,500   660 
 Nestlé (South Africa) pty Limited   1,681   1,325 
 Nestlé Nigeria  plc   537   –   
 Nestlé Asean Malaysia   500   –   
 Nestlé Waters Management & technology   27,795   5,702 
 Saudi Food Industries Limited   22   22 
 Nestlé Water Middle east   408   409 

    165,231   75,962 
 
 these relate to normal business of the Company and are interest free. 
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   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

24 Cash and bank balances 

 Cash at bank – current accounts   311,691   415,014 

     311,691   415,014 
 Cash and cheques in hand    4,079   4,313 

     315,770   419,327 

25 Sales – net 

 own manufactured 
 Local   40,336,017   33,922,714 
 export   3,269,698   2,206,878 

     43,605,715   36,129,592 
 Goods purchased for resale   549,282   628,649 
	 Less:	
 Sales tax   (906,239)  (750,587)
 trade discounts   (2,092,936)  (1,823,807)

     41,155,822   34,183,847 
 
26 Cost of goods sold 

 raw and packing materials consumed   22,810,079   18,665,394 
 Salaries, wages and amenities 26.1  1,593,654   1,180,428 
 Fuel and power   1,189,301   1,064,810 
 Insurance   31,197   26,611 
 repairs, maintenance and stores consumption   1,166,635   838,666 
 rent, rates and taxes   130,424   113,028 
 Depreciation 16.1  991,926   896,521 
 expenses on information technology   149,550   165,512 
 Stationery expenses   22,699   24,526 
 Communication   41,681   43,051 
 Quality assurance   129,902   115,572 
 royalty and technical assistance fee   1,208,413   962,597 
 others   207,644   181,858 

     29,673,105   24,278,574 
 Decrease in work-in-process   5,029   117,434 

 Cost of goods manufactured   29,678,134   24,396,008 
	 (Increase)	/	decrease	in	finished	goods	 	 	(724,478)	 	431,559	

 Cost of goods sold – own manufactured   28,953,656   24,827,567 
 Cost of goods sold – purchased for resale   303,246   403,965 

     29,256,902   25,231,532 
 

26.1 Salaries,	wages	and	amenities	include	Rs.	35.521	million	(2008:	Rs.	18.703	million)	in	respect	of		gratuity,	Rs.	13.309	
million	(2008:	Rs.	11.963	million)	in	respect	of	pension	and	Rs.	32.815	million	(2008:	Rs.	28.763		million)	in	respect	
of provident fund. 
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   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

27 Distribution and selling expenses 

 Salaries, wages and amenities 27.1  913,600   760,227 
 training   18,104   20,033 
 rent, rates and taxes   73,196   81,287 
 Insurance   7,952   6,265 
 Freight outward   1,298,943   1,072,991 
 Depreciation 16.1  149,966   127,629 
 Sales promotion and advertisement   2,444,557   1,509,616 
 Legal and professional charges   12,303   5,373 
 Vehicle running and maintenance   14,116   16,974 
 Utilities    22,946   16,670 
 repairs and maintenance   42,090   29,008 
 Subscription, stationery, printing and publication   9,689   9,768 
 Communications   17,158   13,765 
 traveling, conveyance and vehicle running   104,735   94,081 
 provision for doubtful debts   976   – 
 expenses on information technology   19,838   28,371 
 other expenses   88,319   98,294 

     5,238,488   3,890,352 
 

27.1 Salaries,	wages	and	amenities	include	Rs.	35.673	million	(2008:	Rs.	25.888	million)	in	respect	of		gratuity,	Rs.	16.343	
million	(2008:	Rs.	9.649	million)	in	respect	of	pension	and	Rs.	33.212	million	(2008:	Rs.	29.878	million)	in	respect	of	
provident fund. 

   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

28 Administrative expenses 

 Salaries, wages and amenities 28.1  526,644   428,043 
 training   36,835   20,003 
 rent, rates and taxes   74,678   78,617 
 Insurance   3,246   2,591 
 Depreciation 16.1  71,047   69,744 
 Amortization 18  42,638   42,638 
 Legal and professional charges 28.2  26,128   22,722 
 Vehicles running and maintenance   7,948   9,138 
 Utilities    21,329   16,751 
 repairs and maintenance   22,584   14,783 
 Subscription, stationery, printing and publication   10,832   11,126 
 Communications   36,274   36,778 
 traveling and conveyance   45,078   43,214 
 expenses on information technology   124,130   138,094 
 other expenses   35,730   22,574 

     1,085,121   956,816 
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28.1 Salaries,	wages	and	amenities	include	Rs.	21.351	million	(2008:	Rs.	14.577	million)	in	respect	of		gratuity,	Rs.	15.581	
million	(2008:	Rs.	7.539	million)	in	respect	of	pension	and	Rs.	19.785	million	(2008:	Rs.	16.011	million)	in	respect	of	
provident fund. 

 
   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

28.2 Legal and professional charges include the 
    following in respect of auditors’ services for: 

 Statutory audit   500   460 
 Half yearly review   150   140 
 Services in connection with review and reporting of  
 accounts to parent company auditors   25   25 
	 Audit	of	accounts	of	staff	retirement	benefits	 	 	60		 	55	
	 Other	sundry	certificates	 	 	12		 	12	
 out of pocket expenses   135   128 

    882   820 
 
29 Finance cost 

	 Exchange	loss	on	derivative	financial	liability	 	 	50,017		 	–	
	 Mark-up	on	short	term	running	finances	–	secured	 	 	111,024		 	202,264	
 Mark-up on short term borrowings – secured   16,086   73,484 
 Mark-up on loan from associated company   225,781   247,169 
 Bank charges   39,142   34,408 

     442,050   557,325 

30 Other operating expenses 

	 Workers	Profit	Participation	Fund	 13.1	 	224,826		 	119,629	
 Workers Welfare Fund   85,434   45,459 
 Donations 30.1  80,177   58,529 
 Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 30.2  61,100   – 
 Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment   195,063   56,000 
 exchange loss   431,773   1,101,998 
 others   12,776   523 

     1,091,149   1,382,138 

30.1 donations 

	 Name	of	donee	in	which	a	director	or	his	spouse	has	an	interest:	
    National Management Foundation (NMF), 
        Defence Housing Authority, Lahore   40,000   40,000 
    (Syed Babar Ali, Director is also Chairman of NMF) 

    40,000   40,000 
 

30.2	 It	includes	amortization	of	loss	on	sale	and	lease	back	transaction	for	the	year	amounting	to	Rs.0.968	million	(2008:	
0.968 million). 
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    2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

31 Other operating income 

	 Income	from	non-financial	assets	
	 Profit	on	disposal	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	 	 	–				 	4,511	
 Sale of scrap   62,584   57,112 
 others   81,561   177 

     144,145   61,800 

32 Taxation 

 Current year 

    Current   1,144,235   791,661 
    Deferred   212,612   (52,342)

     1,356,847   739,319 
 prior year 

    Current   (175,723)  (64,729)

     1,181,124   674,590 
 
    2009 2008
    (%) 

32.1 Tax charge reconciliation

 Numerical reconciliation between the average effective  
	 			tax	rate	and	the	applicable	tax	rate:	

 Applicable tax rate    35.00   35.00 
	 Tax	effect	of	amounts	that	are:	

 Not deductible for tax purposes   21.14   34.02 
 Allowable for tax purposes   (20.69)  (32.70)
 effect of changes in prior years’ tax/surcharge   (4.45)  (4.69)
 tax effect under presumptive tax regime   (3.03)  (3.13)

    (7.03)  (6.50) 

	 Average	effective	tax	rate	charged	to	profit	and	loss	account	 	 	27.97		 	28.50	
 
 Average effective tax rate includes the tax impact of items directly recognized in equity. 

    2009 2008
33 earnings per share 

33.1 Basic earnings per share

	 Profit	after	taxation	available	for		
     distribution to ordinary shareholders rupees in ‘000  3,005,133   1,552,894 

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares Number in ‘000  45,350   45,350 

 Basic earnings per share rupees  66.27   34.24 
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33.2 diluted earnings per share 

 there is no dilution effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company as it has no such commitments. 
 
34 Transactions with related parties 

	 The	 related	parties	 comprise	 associated	undertakings,	 key	management	personnel	 and	 employees	 retirement	 benefit	
funds. the Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Amounts due 
from and to related parties are shown under receivables and payables, amounts due from key management personnel 
are	shown	under	receivables	and	remuneration	of	key	management	personnel	is	disclosed	in	note	37.	Other	significant	
transactions	with	related	parties	are	as	follows:	

    2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

 associated companies 

 royalty and technical assistance fee    1,098,558   894,838 
 purchase of goods, services and rental   6,449,473   5,211,073 
 Sale of goods and services   –     1,856 
 Interest on foreign currency loan   336,805   225,781 
 
 Other related parties 

	 Contribution	to	staff	retirement	benefit	plans	 	 	303,515		 	89,867	
 Donation to National Management Fund   40,000   40,000 
  
 All transactions with related parties have been carried out on commercial terms and conditions. 
 
    2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

35 Cash generated from operations 

	 Profit	before	taxation	 	 	4,186,257		 	2,227,484	
	 Adjustment	for	non-cash	charges	and	other	items:	
 Depreciation   1,213,055   1,093,921 
 Amortization   42,638   42,638 
 Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment   195,063   56,000 
	 Loss	/	(profit)	on	disposal	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	 	 	61,100		 	(4,511)
 exchange loss on long term foreign currency loan   444,100   1,111,175 
 provision for doubtful debts – net   75   – 
	 Retirement	benefits	 	 	137,778		 	89,638	
 Finance cost   399,783   557,325 

	 Profit	before	working	capital	changes	 	 	6,679,849		 	5,173,670	
	 Effect	on	cash	flow	due	to	working	capital	changes:	

 (Increase) in stores and spares   (64,337)  (368,074)
 (Increase) in stock in trade   (1,406,465)  (95,267)
 Decrease / (increase) in trade debts   215,023   (112,760)
 Decrease / (increase) in advances, deposits, prepayments and  
    other receivables   6,635   (112,080)
 Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables   989,108   (263,842)
 (Decrease) / increase in customer security deposits – interest free    (22,198)  3,312 

     (282,234)  (948,711)

     6,397,615   4,224,959 
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   Note 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

36 Cash and cash equivalents 

 Cash and bank balances 24  315,770   419,327 
	 Short	term	running	finance	under	mark-up	arrangements	–	secured	 		 (756,362)	 	(1,924,287)

     (440,592)  (1,504,960)

37 Remuneration of chairman, chief executive and executives

	 The	aggregate	amounts	charged	in	these	financial	statements	during	the	year	for	remuneration,	including	certain	benefits,	
to	the		chairman,	chief	executive	and	executives	of	the	Company	are	as	follows:	
 

     Chairman Chief executive executives
     2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
     (rupees in ‘000) (rupees in ‘000) (rupees in ‘000)

 Managerial 1,664   1,465   12,738   11,460  570,887   439,082 
 Bonus   –    –    8,151 4,561 155,925 71,041 
	 Retirement	benefits	 –			 	–			 	–			 	–			 	104,789	 79,234	
 Housing  –    –   2,660  2,753 16,331 13,411
 Utilities  136   120   –    –    31,659  24,472 
 reimbursable 623   539   3,522 6,784 99,551 73,151

     2,423   2,124   27,071  25,558 979,142 700,391
 
 Number of persons 1 1 1* 1 365 291
 
 the chairman, chief executive and certain executives of the Company are provided with use of Company maintained 

vehicles and residential telephones. 
 
	 No	meeting	fee	was	paid	to	the	directors	during	the	year	(2008:	Rs.	Nil).

 * Mr. trevor Clayton resigned as the chief executive on September 30, 2009. the Board appointed Mr. Ian James Donald 
in	his	place	to	fill	the	casual	vacancy	in	its	meeting	held	on	September	30,	2009.

   Capacity production

   2009 2008 2009 2008
   (rupees in ‘000) (rupees in ‘000)

38 Capacity and production 

 Liquid products – liters (000)  967,849   939,239   640,955   588,845 

 Non-liquid products – Kgs (000)  158,602   155,094   68,059   57,118 
 
 Under utilization of capacity was mainly due to seasonality impact of fresh milk and increase in capacity through new 

investment to meet future requirement. 
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39 segment reporting   
 Segment information is presented in respect of the Company’s business. the primary format, business segment, is based 

on the Company’s management reporting structure.   
 

 Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated 
on a reasonable basis. Unallocated assets and liabilities include short term and long term borrowings, employees 
retirement	benefits	and	other	operating	liabilities.	 	 	 	
     
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are expected to be 
used for more than one year.    
  

	 The	Company’s	operations	comprise	of	the	following	main	business	segments:	 	 	
     
– Milk and nutrition products – Beverages.  
 

	 These	segments	comprise	of	following	major	types	of	products:	 	 	
 

 – Milk and nutrition products –Beverages.   
      Milk based procucts and cereals       Juices & water

39.2 Geographical segments 
 All segments of the Company are managed on nation-wide basis and operate manufacturing facilities and sales 

offices	in	Pakistan.

39.1 Segment analysis for the year ended 31 December 
  Milk and   Beverages  other  total
  Nutrition products   operations

  2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

     (rupees in ‘000) 
 
 sales 
 external sales  35,559,121   29,575,157   5,225,797   4,194,323   370,904   414,367   41,155,822   34,183,847 
 Inter-segment sales  –     –     –      –      –     –   

 total revenue  35,559,121   29,575,157   5,225,797   4,194,323   370,904   414,367   41,155,822   34,183,847 
 
 Depreciation and amortization  (1,012,096)  (928,126)  (236,686)  (204,943)  (6,911)  (3,490)  (1,255,693)  (1,136,559)

	 Profit/(loss)	before	tax	and	
    unallocated expenses  5,344,149   3,924,230   532,730   303,516   (106,505)  (66,599)  5,770,374   4,161,147 
 
 Unallocated corporate expenses 

    Finance cost        (442,050)  (557,325)
    exchange loss on translation of foreign currency        (431,773)  (1,101,998)
    other operating expenses        (659,376)  (280,140)
    other operating income        144,145   61,800 
    taxation        (1,181,124)  (674,590)

 Other material non-cash items 

 Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment  –     –     195,063   56,000   –     –     (195,063)  (56,000)

 Profit after taxation        3,005,133   1,552,894 
 
 
 segment assets  13,357,120   10,085,700   3,201,320   3,559,434   70,232   108,992   16,628,672   13,754,126 
 Unallocated assets        1,958,308   2,930,050 

 total assets        18,586,980   16,684,176 
 
 segment liabilities  3,377,808   2,640,721   576,007   481,989   33,381   34,983   3,987,196   3,157,693 
 Unallocated liabilities        10,172,829   9,137,636 

 total liabilities        14,160,025   12,295,329 
 
 Segment capital expenditure  1,611,285   1,292,338   388,734   465,273   –     –     2,000,019   1,757,611 
 Unallocated capital expenditure        271,250   113,685 

         2,271,269   1,871,296 
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40 Financial risk management 
 Financial risk factors 
	 The	Company’s	activities	expose	it	to	a	variety	of	financial	risks,	market	risk	(including	currency	risk,	other	price	risk	

and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. the Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the 
unpredictability	of	financial	markets	and	seeks	to	minimize	potential	adverse	effects	on	the	financial	performance.	

 
	 The	Company	finances	its	operations	through	equity,	borrowings	and	management	of	working	capital	with	a	view	to	

maintain	an	appropriate	mix	between	various	sources	of	finance	to	minimize	risk.	The	Company	follows	an	effective	
cash	management	and	planning	policy	and	maintains	flexibility	in	funding	by	keeping	committed	credit	lines	available.	
Market risks are managed by the Company through the adoption of appropriate policies to cover currency risks and 
interest rate risks. the Company applies credit limits to its customers and obtains advances from them. 
 
40.1 Market risk 
a)  Currency Risk 
	 Currency	risk	is	the	risk	that	the	fair	value	or	future	cash	flows	of	a	financial	instrument	will	fluctuate	because	of	

changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables 
and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. 

 
 the Company is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to 

various currencies. Currently, the Company’s foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts 
receivable	from	/	payable	to	the	foreign	entities.	The	Company’s	exposure	to	currency	risk	is	as	follows:	

 
   Currency 2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

 particulars
 Foreign currency bank accounts US $  18,190   3,321 
 Cash in hand 
  US $  3,621   2,372 
  eUr €  364   669  
  CHF  –     780  
    3,985   3,821  
 receivables 
  US $  4,548   4,112  
  CHF  –     4,610  
  GB £  135   –    
    4,683   8,722  
    26,858   15,864  
	 Less	:	
 Long term loan from associated undertaking US $  (5,473,975)   (5,139,875) 
 Short term Borrowing from associated company – unsecured US $  (2,105,375)   –   
 Finance under mark-up arrangements US $  (26,865)   (4,033) 
 payables US $  (696,374)   (143,284) 
  eUr €  (180,849)   (4,723)  
  CHF  (4,411)   (38,087)  
  GB £  (2,840)   –    
  SGp $  (1,200)   –    
  AU $  (9,047)   –    
  DKK  –     (119)  
    (894,721)   (186,213)  
    (8,500,936)   (5,330,121)  
 Net exposure   (8,474,078)  (5,314,257)
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	 The	following	significant	exchange	rates	were	applied	during	the	year:	
 
      2009  
   US $ eUr € CHF GB £ SGp $  AU $   DKK 
      rupees per currency unit  
 
 Average rate 81.46 115.34 77.56 125.36 57.09 65.07 15.46
 reporting date rate 84.22 121.38 81.69 135.24 60.00 75.39 16.25
 
      2008  
   US $ eUr € CHF GB £ SGp $  AU $   DKK 
      rupees per currency unit  
 
 Average rate 70.39 100.85 64.48 118.13 48.79 54.44 13.50
 reporting date rate 79.08 111.46 70.93 113.76 54.76 54.57 14.89
 
 
 Currency Rate Sensitivity Analysis 

	 If	the	functional	currency,	at	reporting	date,	had	fluctuated	by	10%	against	the	foreign	currencies	with	all	other	
variables	held	constant,	the	impact	on	profit	after	taxation	for	the	year	would	have	been	as	follows:	

 
    2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

	 Effect	on	Profit	and	loss:	
 US Dollar 538,191   343,076 
 euro  11,732   263 
 Great Britain pound  176   –   
 Singapore Dollar  78   –   
 Australian Dollar  588   –   
 Swiss Franc  287   2,126 
 Denmark Kroner  –     8 

   551,052   345,473  
 
 the effect may be respectively lower / higher, mainly as a result of exchange gains / losses on translation of 

foreign	exchange	denominated	financial	instruments.		
 
 Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated on a symmetric basis. 
 
b)  Other price risk 

	 Other	price	risk	represents	the	risk	that	the	fair	value	or	future	cash	flows	of	a	financial	instrument	will	fluctuate	
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether 
those	changes	are	caused	by	factors	specific	to	the	individual	financial	instrument	or	its	issuer,	or	factors	affecting	
all	similar	financial	instruments	traded	in	the	market.	
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c) Interest rate risk 

	 Interest	rate	risk	represents	the	risk	that	the	fair	value	or	future	cash	flows	of	a	financial	instrument	will	fluctuate	
because	of	changes	in	market	interest	rates.	Significant	interest	rate	risk	exposures	are	primarily	managed	by	a	
mix	of	borrowings	at	fixed	and	variable	interest	rates.

 
	 At	the	balance	sheet	date,	the	interest	rate	profile	of	the	Company’s	interest	bearing	financial	instruments	is:	
 

    2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

 Variable rate instruments 
 Long term Finances from associated undertaking – US $  (5,473,975)  (5,139,875)
 effective interest rate in %age  2.08   4.98 
 
 Short term borrowings from associated undertaking – US $  (2,105,375)  –   
 effective interest rate in %age  1.83   –   
 
 Short term borrowings from local banks – pKr  (756,362)  (2,224,287)
 effective interest rate in %age  10.60   13.75 
 
 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments 

	 The	Company	does	not	account	for	any	fixed	rate	financial	assets	and	liabilities	at	fair	value	through	profit	or	loss.	
Therefore,	a	change	in	interest	rate	at	the	balance	sheet	date	would	not	affect	profit	or	loss	of	the	Company.	

 
 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

	 If	interest	rates	on	long	term	loans	to	subsidiaries	and	deposit	bank	balances,	at	the	year	end	date,	fluctuate	by	
100	bps	higher	/	lower	with	all	other	variables	,in	particularly	foreign	exchange	rates	held	constant,	profit	after	
taxation	for	the	year	and	2008	would	have	been	effected	as	follows	:	

 
    2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

	 Effect	on	Profit	and	loss	 	 	205,347		 	413,041	
 
	 The	effect	may	be	higher	/	lower,	mainly	as	a	result	of	higher	/	lower	mark-up	income	on	floating	rate	loans	/	

investments. 
 
	 The	sensitivity	analysis	prepared	is	not	necessarily	indicative	of	the	effects	on	the	profit	for	the	year	and	assets	/	

liabilities of the company.  
 
40.2 Credit risk 

	 Credit	 risk	represents	 the	risk	 that	one	party	 to	a	financial	 instrument	will	cause	a	financial	 loss	 for	 the	other	
party by failing to discharge an obligation. Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade debts and 
its	 balances	 at	 banks.	 The	 carrying	 amount	 of	 financial	 assets	 represents	 the	maximum	 credit	 exposure.	 The	
maximum	exposure	to	credit	risk	at	the	reporting	date	is	as	follows:	
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    2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

 Particulars

 Long term loans   90,843   98,544 
 Long term deposits & prepayments   5,026   5,036 
 Current maturity of long term loans   21,012   26,615 
 trade debts – domestic   241,714   456,313 
 Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivable   1,528,223   1,488,104 
 Bank balance   311,691   415,014 

    2,198,509   2,489,626  
 
	 The	aging	of	trade	debts	at	the	reporting	date	is:	
 past due 0 – 30 days    210,548   350,578 
 past due 31 – 60 days    24,083   87,555 
 past due 61 – 90 days    223   3,137 
 past due 91 – 120 days    6,861   3,468 
 past due 120 days    –     12,075 

    241,715   456,813  
 
 the credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings. 

the company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk as its exposure is spread over a 
large number of counter parties and subscribers in the case of trade debts. 

 
 the credit quality of cash and bank balances that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference 

to	external	credit	ratings	or	historical	information	about	counterparty	default	rate:	
 
   rating 
  Short term  Long term   Agency  
 
 Barclays Bank pLC A1+  AA–   S & p 
 Standard Chartered Bank Limited A1+  AAA   pACrA 
 Citibank N.A. A1  A+   S & p 
 MCB Bank Limited A1+  AA+   pACrA 
 Deutsché Bank AG A1  A+   S & p 
 Habib Bank Limited A1+  AA+   JCr–VIS 
 United Bank Limited A1+  AA+   JCr–VIS 
 royal Bank of Scotland * A1+  AA   pACrA 
 
 Due to the Company’s long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due 

consideration	to	their	strong	financial	standing,	management	does	not	expect	non	performance	by	these	counter	
parties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal. 

 
 * royal Bank of Scotland has been placed on watch list by the State Bank of pakistan and the most recent rating 

was carried out in November 2009. 
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40.3 Liquidity risk 

	 Liquidity	risk	is	the	risk	that	an	entity	will	encounter	difficulty	in	meeting	obligations	associated	with	financial	
liabilities. 

 
	 The	Company’s	approach	to	managing	liquidity	is	to	ensure	,as	far	as	possible	,that	it	will	always	have	sufficient	

liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions. For this purpose the 
company	has	sufficient	running	finance	facilities	available	from	various	commercial	banks	to	meet	its	liquidity	
requirements.	 Further	 liquidity	 position	 of	 the	 company	 is	 closely	 monitored	 through	 budgets,	 cash	 flow	
projections and comparison with actual results by the board. 

 
	 The	following	are	the	contractual	maturity	analysis	of	financial	liabilities	as	at		December	31,	2009:	
 
   Less than 6 to 12 1 year to 6 to 10 More than total
    months months  5 years years 10 years

 Non–derivative financial liability 

 Long term loans from  
  associated undertakings  –     1,263,225   4,210,750   –     –     5,473,975 
 Short term borrowings from  
  associated undertakings  –     2,105,375   –     –     –     2,105,375 
 Short term borrowings  
  under mark-up arrangement  258,890   497,472   –     –     –     756,362 
 Liability against assets  
	 	 subject	to	finance	lease	 	28,941		 	30,276		 	118,275		 	–				 	–				 	177,492	
 Customer security deposits  –     105,686   –     –     –     105,686 
 trade and other payables  3,383,113   –     –     –     –     3,383,113 
 Interest and mark-up accrued  46,979   –     –     –     –     46,979 

    3,717,923   4,002,034   4,329,025   –     –     12,048,982  
 
 Derivative financial liability 

 Forward exchange rate contract  42,267   –     –     –     –     42,267 

    3,760,190   4,002,034   4,329,025   –     –     12,091,249  
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	 The	following	are	the	contractual	maturity	analysis	of	financial	liabilities	as	at	December	31,	2008:	
 
   Less than 6 to 12 1 year to 6 to 10 More than total
    months months  5 years years 10 years

 Non-derivative financial liability 

 Long term loans from  
  associated undertakings  –     –     5,139,875   –     –     5,139,875 
 Short term borrowings  
  under mark-up arrangement  1,184,522   739,765   –     –     –     1,924,287 
 Short term borrowings secured  300,000   –     –     –     –     300,000 
 Liability against assets  
	 	 subject	to	finance	lease	 	26,429		 	27,613		 	177,582		 	–				 	–				 	231,624	
 Customer security deposits  127,884  – – – –  127,884 
 trade and other payables  2,512,477   –     –     –     –     2,512,477 
 Interest and mark-up accrued  46,979   –     –     –     –     46,979 

    4,198,291   767,378   5,317,457   –     –     10,283,126  
 
 Derivative financial liability 

 Forward exchange rate contract  –     –     –     –     –     –   

    4,198,291   767,378   5,317,457   –     –     10,283,126  
 
 
 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities 

	 The	carrying	values	of	all	financial	assets	and	liabilities	reflected	in	the	financial	statements	approximate	their	fair	
values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date. 

 
41 Capital risk management 

	 The	Board’s	policy	is	to	maintain	an	efficient	capital	base	so	as	to	maintain	investor,	creditor	and	market	confidence	and	
to sustain the future development of its business. the Board of Directors monitors the return on capital employed, which 
the	Company	defines	as	operating	income	divided	by	total	capital	employed.	The	Board	of	Directors	also	monitors	the	
level of dividends to ordinary shareholders. 

 
	 The	Company’s	objectives	when	managing	capital	are:	
 

i)  to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for 
shareholders	and	benefits	for	other	stakeholders,	and	

 
ii) to provide an adequate return to shareholders.  

 
 the Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the 

underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may, for example, adjust the amount 
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. 

 
 the company monitors capital on the basis of debt-to-equity ratio, calculated on the basis of total debt-to-equity. 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended December 31, 2009



105
F I N A N C I A L  r e p o r t  2 0 0 9

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended December 31, 2009

	 The	debt-to-equity	ratio	as	at	December	31,	2009	and	December	31,	2008	were	as	follows:	
 
    2009 2008
    (rupees in ‘000) 

 total borrowing   8,513,204   7,595,786 
 total equity   4,426,955   4,388,847 

 total Debt and equity   12,940,159   11,984,633 

	 Debt-to-equity	ratio	 	 66:34	 63:37
 
 there was no major change in debt-to-equity ratio in 2009. 
 
 there were no major changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year and the Company is 

not subject to externally imposed capital requirements 
 
42 Date of authorization for issue 

	 These	financial	statements	were	authorized	for	issue	on	February	09,	2010	by	the	Board	of	Directors.	
 
43 dividend 

	 The	Board	of	Directors	in	their	meeting	held	on	February	09,	2010	have	proposed	a	final	cash	dividend	for	the	year	ended	
December	31,	2009	of	Rs.	20	(2008:	Rs.	25)	per	share,	amounting	to	Rs.	906.992	million	(2008:	Rs.	1,133.74	million)	for	
approval	of	the	members	at	the	Annual	General	Meeting	to	be	held	on	March	25,	2010.	These	financial	statements	do	not	
reflect	this	dividend.	

 
44 General 

44.1 Corresponding figures 

	 Previous	year’s	figures	have	been	re-arranged,	wherever	necessary	for	the	purpose	of	comparison.	However	no	
material re–arrangements have been made. 

 
44.2 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest of thousand of rupee.  

 RaYmONd FRaNke iaN J. dONald sYed YaWaR ali
 Head of Finance and Control Chief executive Chairman
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I/We, 

of 

being a member of Nestlé pakistan Ltd., holder of

ordinary Share(s) as per register Folio No. 

hereby Appoint Mr./Ms. 

Folio No.                           of                                                           or failing him 

Mr./Ms.                                                                      Folio No.                                 of                

who is also a member of Nestlé pakistan Ltd., as my / our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us, and 

on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on March 25, 2010 and at any adjournment 

thereof.

Signed under my/our hand this                                          day of March, 2010.

     

 
Signature should agree

   with the specimen signature
   registered with the company

Signed	in	the	presence	of:

Signature of Witness

NOtes:

1 this instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly authorized 
in	writing,	or	if	the	appointer	is	a	corporation	either	under	the	common	seal	or	under	the	hand	of	an	official	or	attorney	
so	authorized.	No	person	shall	be	appointed	as	proxy	who	is	not	a	member	of	the	Company	qualified	to	vote	except	that	
a corporation being a member may appoint a person who is not a member.

2 the instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any), under which it is signed or a 
notarially	certified	copy	of	that	power	of	authority,	shall	be	deposited	at	the	office	of	the	Company	not	less	than	48	(forty	
eight) hours before the time for holding the meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, and 
in default the instrument of a proxy shall not be treated as valid.

Form of proxy
Nestlé pakistan Ltd.
308 – Upper Mall, Lahore, pakistan.

signature across Rs. 5

Revenue stamp
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aFFiX 

CORReCt 

POstaGe

the Company Secretary

Nestlé Pakistan Ltd.
308 – Upper Mall, Lahore, pakistan
phone No. +92 42 111 637 853
Fax No. +92 42 3578 9303
www.nestle.pk



 

Celebrating Our People…

At Nestlé, we understand that people 
are at the center of our success. We work 
according to our company’s longstanding 
corporate business principles of integrity, 
trust, hardwork, pragmatism, dynamism, 
diversity and respect.

At Nestlé Pakistan, we are committed to 
providing each other with an enabling 
work environment, that is built upon our 
core values. We encourage everyone to 
communicate openly and collaboratively 
and to trust and respect others. 
Ownership, pro-activeness and passion 
are at the heart of the way we do things.

Strong cultures are built upon the 
foundations of strong values, which can 
take years to inculcate and develop. Each 
of us must work to contribute to the 
development of our culture and build 
on this foundation for today, and for our 
future.

We have much to be proud of. Nestlé 
Pakistan has travelled far in a short time, 
positively enchancing the quality of life 
of our people, our consumers, our society 
and contributing to all our partners, 
stakholders and our economy. 

Our consumers are at the center 
of everthing we do. Our success is 
depending on earning their trust. We are 
committed to ensuring that our products 
are of the highest quality and meet the 
needs of our consumers throughout 
Pakistan. 

Care is the essence of what we stand for 
and our values, products, brands and 
consumer	trust	on	our	quality	are	the	flag	
bearers of our company.

Ian J. Donald
Chief Executive

Enhancing the quality of life of people is the 
focus of our commitment

Cover Concept
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